	MEMORANDUM	
From:	N. Emery Layton, P.E.	L W I .A T H
To:	Ken Hudimac	TON
Date:	29 Feb 2016	
RE:	Prosthetics 2 <sup>nd</sup> Floor Expansion – George E Wahle VA #660-14-302 – Bid Addendum #1	en SLC VAMC

This memo has been prepared to respond to the bidders questions for the Prosthetics 2<sup>nd</sup> floor expansion project.

#### **RESPONSE TO QUESTIONS:**

#### Q1: Will the past performance and construction experience of a teaming partner or subcontractor be considered relevant for this project in order for the offeror to be technical acceptable?

A1: To be answered by VA Contracting.

#### Q2: Will the Special Inspections and Materials Testing be handled by the owner, general contractor or third-party?

A2: Refer to Specification Section 01 00 00 General Requirements and Section 01 45 29 Testing Laboratory Services.

Q3: The previous prosthetics addition that this project will be constructed on top of had no provisions for concrete deck. Will the VA allow placement of visqueen plastic barrier over the existing steel deck to assist with sealing for concrete placement or would that affect the structural bond between concrete and steel?

A3: See attached revised "Conditions For Construction at Existing Occupied Building", found on sheets GI200 and S-003. See also keyed note '12' on sheets AD103 and AD104.

O4: We are concerned with the placement of the steel headed studs (Nelson Studs) the welding of these is accomplished with a very high power welding apparatus that can be very dangerous to occupants and finishes below especially if the beam below the roof deck is missed. Will all Nelson Stud placement be required after hours and on weekends per S003?

A4: See attached revised "Conditions For Construction at Existing Occupied Building", found on sheets GI200 and S-003. The critical aspect of headed stud anchor placement is that it occur when the space below is unoccupied.

## **Q5:** Will the doors entering the main corridor of the hospital and also entering existing prosthetics be able to be shut down during construction? A5: See attached new sheet GI105.

# Q6: Spec. sections 22-13-00 and 22-14-00 do not include system specific material requirements, IE:Underground / above ground SS & SD piping requirements. Shall we assume cast iron no hub will be required for these systems?

A6: Specification section 22-13-00 subsection 2.1A states that "Cast iron waste, drain, and vent pipe and fittings shall be used for the following applications:

- a. Pipe buried in or in contact with earth.
- b. Sanitary extensions to a distance of approximately 5 feet outside of the building.c. Interior waste and vent piping above grade."

Specification section 22-14-00 subsection 2.1A states that "Cast iron waste, drain, and vent pipe and fittings shall be used for the following applications:

- a. Pipe buried in or in contact with earth.
- b. Sanitary extensions to a distance of approximately 5 feet outside of the building.
- c. Interior storm drainage piping above grade.
- d. All mechanical equipment rooms or other areas containing mechanical air handling equipment."

### Q7: There is no Spec. section included for Facility domestic water piping systems. Shall we assume type L copper tubing with soldered joints will be required for this system?

A7: See added specification section 221100 Facility Water Distribution in addendum documentation.

## Q8: For Deductive alternate A: the solicitation calls for a shelled interior of the OT/PT Gym, do we need to include plumbing rough in for the FS-1 & P-528 fixtures in this area?

A8: Yes, include plumbing rough in for this area.

**Q9:** Plan Page PL-104 Keynote #1 references sheet PP-101, the plumbing drawings do not include this sheet. Is this note referencing PL-101? A9: Keynote #1 on PL-104 is referencing PL-102. See updated note on PL-104.

**Q10:** Plan page PE-101 Has keynoted Items with no keynotes, Please clarify A10: Keynotes are reference enlarged plans and will be deleted from this sheet. See updated PE-101.

#### Q11: Sheet ED101 Note 2 says: Remove 800amp siemens disconnect. Remove all conductors back to panel. Abandon conduit in place. How long is this conduit run? Also will we have to have a power shut down to remove the wire from the panel?

A11: The Conduit is fed from a Panel in the main electrical room GD04 in building 1 and is a minimum of 450 feet, exact length is unknown. A power shut down will likely be required.

#### Q12: Sheet ES101: Fixture type OPC1 is an owner supplied light pole: What kind of light pole base is required for this pole light?

A12: The OPCI site lighting fixture is equal to the ZX-1 light fixture and will require the same base detail as shown on sheet ES501 F5 and F7.

### Q13: Sheet EP601 Note 1 says: Refeed transformer "1-1-F-N-TR1" with new feed from new main distribution panel. Do we need to remove old feeders back to the breaker in building 42? Will this require a Shutdown?

A13: Yes remove old conductors back to switchgear 42-1-A-N-D1 in building 42. A power shut down will likely be required. See revised sheet EP601.

### Q14: Sheet EP601: Is transformer "1-1-F-N-TR2" Primary voltage 12470 or 480/277?

A14: Transformer 1-1-F-N-TR2 primary voltage is 480/277 volt. See revised sheet EP601.

#### Q15: The drawings show very short fittings tying into the FCU units, these fittings will take up more room that shown. Is the type of fitting show acceptable for air flow. There will be even less space when the filter rack is installed not to mention the access that will be needed to service the filters. Example FCU-19

A15: FCU/ductwork connections will be coordinated. See updated mechanical sheets.

#### DRAWING & SPECIFICATION UPDATES:

The design team has provided minor drawing updates and a new specification as discussed previously as part of this addendum. Drawing changes have been indicated by clouding subject area with a delta #1.

#### **CONCLUSION**

**EWL** is proud to provide services to the Veterans Administration and our veteran brethren. Thank you for your business.



tsaarchitects

17 Exchange Place Salt Lake City, Utah 84111 801 463.7108 Tel. www.tsa-usa.com

#### Architectural and Structural Addendum 01

#### **PROJECT INFORMATION**

PROJECT:	Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) George E. Wahlen Medical Center 500 Foothill Drive Salt Lake City, Utah 84112	TSA PROJECT #:	1341
OWNER:	Department of Veterans Affairs	OWNER PROJECT #:	660-302
DATE:	February 24, 2016		
ISSUED BY:	Douglas Banks, AIA, <u>dbanks@tsa-usa.com</u>		

This Addendum forms a part of the Contract Documents and modifies the original Bid Documents as noted below. All conditions, requirements, materials and workmanship are to be as described in the Contract Documents unless specifically stated otherwise. Acknowledge receipt of this Addendum in the space provided on the Bid Form. Failure to do so may subject the Bidder to disqualification. This Addendum consists of all attachments noted and included herein by reference.

#### **Specification Amendments**

Section	ion Remark	
01 00 00	<ol> <li>Revised Section 1.2, STATEMENT OF BID ITEM(S), subsection A, ITEM   BASE BID, GENERAL CONSTRUCTION.</li> </ol>	
08 70 00	<ol> <li>Added Hardware Group HW-1G, HW-E9.</li> <li>Misc. hardware clarifications.</li> </ol>	

#### **Drawing Amendments - Architectural**

Sheet	Remark
GI105	1. Added sheet GI105.
GI200	1. Revised "Conditions For Construction at Existing Occupied Building".
GI500	1. Revised Wall Types 15, 16 and 17.
GI501	1. Revised Wall Type 18 and text in Room Square Footage table
A\$100	1. Revised multiple keyed notes.
A\$101	1. Revised multiple keyed notes.
AD101	<ol> <li>Added keyed note '4'</li> <li>Clarified extent of concrete to be demolished</li> </ol>
AD102	1. Keyed note clarifications
AD103	1. Revised keyed notes.
AD104	1. Revised keyed notes.

17 Exchange Place Salt Lake City, Utah 84111 801 463.7108 Tel. www.tsa-usa.com

Sheet	Re	mark
AE102	1. 2. 3.	Revised dimension strings. Added column detail 20/AE511. Changed room numbers.
AE103	1. 2. 3.	Added door 2F00G. Added wall type '14'. Added keyed note '30' location.
AE104	1.	Revised dimension strings.
AE121	1.	Revised recessed slab dimensions at Electrical Transformer.
AE141	1.	Clarified ceiling types.
AE142	1.	Changed room numbers.
AE143	1.	Clarified ceiling types.
AE201	1. 2.	Revised dimension string. Revised elevation datum's.
AE202	1. 2. 3.	Changed exterior finishes on West Elevation. Added door in window system on West Elevation @ Courtyard Revised elevation datum's.
AE301, AE302, AE303, AE304, AE305, AE306	1.	Revised elevation datum's.
AE511	1.	Added sheet AE511.
AE601	1. 2. 3.	Added door 2F00G. Revised door and frame types. Door Schedule revisions.
AE622	1.	Added door to Window Type 'U'.
AI601	1.	Finish Schedule revisions.

#### **Drawing Amendments - Architectural**

#### **Drawing Revisions - Structural**

Sheet	Remark
S-003	1. Revised "Conditions For Construction at Existing Occupied Building".

End of Addendum 01

#### SECTION 01 00 00 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.1 GENERAL INTENTION
1.2 STATEMENT OF BID ITEM(S)2
1.3 SPECIFICATIONS AND DRAWINGS FOR CONTRACTOR
1.4 CONSTRUCTION SECURITY REQUIREMENTS
1.5 FIRE SAFETY14
1.6 OPERATIONS AND STORAGE AREAS
1.7 ALTERATIONS
1.8 INFECTION PREVENTION MEASURES
1.9 DISPOSAL AND RETENTION
1.10 PROTECTION OF EXISTING VEGETATION, STRUCTURES, EQUIPMENT, UTILITIES, AND IMPROVEMENTS
1.11 RESTORATION
1.12 PHYSICAL DATA
1.13 PROFESSIONAL SURVEYING SERVICES
1.14 LAYOUT OF WORK
1.15 AS-BUILT DRAWINGS
1.16 USE OF ROADWAYS
1.17 TEMPORARY USE OF MECHANICAL AND ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT
1.18 TEMPORARY USE OF EXISTING ELEVATORS
1.19 TEMPORARY USE OF NEW ELEVATORS
1.20 TEMPORARY TOILETS
1.21 AVAILABILITY AND USE OF UTILITY SERVICES

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

1.22	NEW TELEPHONE EQUIPMENT
1.23	TESTS
1.24	INSTRUCTIONS
1.25	GOVERNMENT-FURNISHED PROPERTY
1.26	RELOCATED EQUIPMENT ITEMS40
1.27	CONSTRUCTION SIGN
1.28	SAFETY SIGN41
1.29	PHOTOGRAPHIC DOCUMENTATION
1.30	FINAL ELEVATION Digital Images45
1.31	VA TRIRIGA CPMS

#### SECTION 01 00 00 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

#### 1.1 GENERAL INTENTION

- A. Contractor shall completely prepare site for building operations, including demolition and removal of existing structures, and furnish labor and materials and perform work for Prosthetics Expansion Second Floor Addition - Rehab B01 Prosthetics & Ortho/Neural/Holistic Medicine as required by drawings and specifications.
- B. Visits to the site by Bidders may be made only by appointment with the Medical Center Engineering Officer.
- C. Offices of **EWL**, as Architect-Engineers, will render certain technical services during construction. Such services shall be considered as advisory to the Government and shall not be construed as expressing or implying a contractual act of the Government without affirmations by Contracting Officer or his duly authorized representative.
- D. Before placement and installation of work subject to tests by testing laboratory retained by Department of Veterans Affairs, the Contractor shall notify the COR in sufficient time to enable testing laboratory personnel to be present at the site in time for proper taking and testing of specimens and field inspection. Such prior notice shall be not less than three work days unless otherwise designated by the COR.
- E. All employees of general contractor and subcontractors shall comply with VA security management program and obtain permission of the VA police, be identified by project and employer, and restricted from unauthorized access.
- F. Prior to commencing work, general contractor shall provide proof that a OSHA designated "competent person" (CP) (29 CFR 1926.20(b)(2) will maintain a presence at the work site whenever the general or subcontractors are present.
- G. Training:
  - All employees of general contractor or subcontractors shall have the 10-hour or 30-hour OSHA Construction Safety course and other relevant competency training, as determined by COR acting as the Construction Safety Officer with input from the facility Construction Safety Committee.

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

- Submit training records of all such employees for approval before the start of work.
- H. VHA Directive 2011-36, Safety and Health during Construction, dated 9/22/2011 in its entirety is made a part of this section

#### 1.2 STATEMENT OF BID ITEM(S)

A. ITEM I BASE BID, GENERAL CONSTRUCTION: Work includes an approximate 23,175 Addition to the Existing Prosthetics Building located in the North East sector of Building B.01. The project scope includes an addition of a second floor, and completion of a new entrance lobby on the first floor that ties into the existing facility with Roadway, Parking and Site improvements. Work will include all general construction, alterations, roads, curb, gutters, walks, grading, drainage, landscaping, mechanical, fire protection, technology and electrical work, extensions and alterations to utility systems, elevators, stairwells, rooftop equipment and, any and all necessary removal, modifications, demolition, alterations of existing structures and construction and certain other items to construct the complete project. Particular attention shall be paid to the second floor addition where the successful contractor will be required to install a new concrete roof deck on the existing first floor to accommodate the floor of the second story addition. Special precautions will be required to protect ongoing active activities on the first floor during the concrete pours and installation of power actuated anchoring devices. Advance scheduling with the VA will be of paramount importance and work in evening, nighttime, and weekend hours will be required and shall be included in the contractors Base Bid Pricing.

The chosen contractor is to provide all materials and labor to build all remaining aspects according to the drawings and specifications and this SOW including but not limited to:

#### Exterior Construction

The Exterior Envelope of the Building is comprised primarily of four materials. The first material is the exterior window system, which is a standard and Blast Resistant Curtain Wall System at all exterior

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302 locations. This exterior window system has integral solar shading fins attached to the window mullions on the South East Façade and occasional spandrel glazing panels. The second material is a pre-finished composite metal panel system with caulked joints. The third exterior system is a kerfed tinted CMU veneer system. All masonry is capped with sloped pre-cast concrete caps. The fourth exterior material of note is a pre-finished corrugated metal panel system. There are limited exterior finish areas of brick veneer to match existing.

ROOFING: The roofing for the entire project shall be a CPA single ply, 80 mil nominal thickness, white membrane system with a 25 year warranty on labor and a 25-year, non-prorated warranty on materials. The recommended manufacturer is IB Roofing Systems of Eugene, OR.

Lastly, the chosen contractor is responsible for constructing a new landscape in front of the addition according to the drawings, specifications, and Statement Of Work.

#### Interior Construction

WALLS: Most walls shall be constructed of a standard GWB and metal studs configuration.

CEILINGS: In general ceilings shall be constructed of suspended acoustical ceiling grid and lay-in acoustical panel systems. Higher end ceiling finishes are detailed on the construction documents. Some areas will be a hard lid, GWB ceiling. Hard lids shall have 24"x24" access hatches placed as needed to provide access to all equipment located above the ceiling.

FLOOR COVERING: A variety of flooring systems are incorporated in the project including entrance mat, carpet tile, porcelain tile, ceramic tile, luxury vinyl tile, vinyl sheet, sealed concrete, rubber tile, and VCT. The concrete slab shall be floated with a skim coat prior to installing vinyl sheet and carpet, vinyl and rubber tile flooring. Installation work shall not begin until a seam layout plan is approved by the VA in writing.

CERAMIC TILE: The chosen contractor is responsible for all ceramic tile flooring and wainscoting. Wall tile shall use specialty trim pieces for inside corners, outside corners, and cove base.

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

CASEWORK, SHELVING & FURNITURE:

Plastic laminate lockers, 18" deep, 12" wide, 72" tall with upper shelf and three double coat hooks. Locker doors shall accept padlocks.

Base cabinets - plastic laminate with PVC edging, european hinges, and solid surface tops with backsplash where shown.

Wall-hung cabinets - plastic laminate with matching 3 mm PVC edge banding and european hinges.

Countertops - solid surface with backsplash where shown.

WINDOW BLINDS: As shown on contract documents.

DOORS, DOOR FRAMES, DOOR HARDWARE: All regular doors shall be of plain sliced red oak with a factory-applied clear coat, and prepped for cylindrical locksets. Door frames shall be one piece hollow metal with hospital stops. All hardware shall be BEST brand with their 626 finish. Closers shall be LCN with Hold-Open in matching finish. Door stops shall be wall-mounted.

AUTOMATIC DOORS - DOOR OPERATORS, ACCESS CONTROLS, FIRE SAFETY HARDWARE: Contractor shall provide and install all automatic doors, door frames, door hardware, door controls/operators/access controls (Card Key by Stanley Security) and safety/fire safety hardware. Automatic hardware / motors shall be Gyrotech.

THERMAL AND MOISTURE PROTECTION: Contractor will be responsible for all required applied fireproofing. All penetrations and joints shall be sealed using a UL Listed assembly. Shop drawings must be submitted for VA approval for each different type of penetration and corresponding firestopping assembly. All UL Listed assemblies must be labeled with the assembly number on the wall/floor immediately adjacent to the penetration firestop assembly.

#### Mechanical Systems

HVAC SYSTEM: the chosen contractor will be responsible for providing and installing all ductwork, control & fire/smoke dampers, all terminal reheat units, air filters, and all registers/grilles/diffusers. The chosen contractor will also be responsible for all other HVAC work including HVAC piping, HVAC piping insulation, duct insulation, turning

> Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

vanes, sound attenuators, vibration isolation components, terminal units start-up and commissioning, all controls (Stanley Security) and overall testing, balancing, and commissioning for the entire project.

A variable refrigerant flow system with dedicated outside air and energy recovery were selected and designed. The system will include ceiling mount (cassette) and wall mount terminal dx heat pumps for each zone. All of which are connected to a central air cooled chiller on the roof of the building. The system will allow for simultaneous heating and cooling of the zones within the space. This system will also include 3 dedicated outside air (DOAS) handling units, each providing 2200 cfm of outside air. Heating for zones within the space will occur in two stages. The first stage will be a gas heating system integral to the DOAS units and the second stage at the heat pump level. The DOAS units will handle exhaust and will also include Energy Recovery Ventilators (ERVs) that utilize the transfer of heat energy from the exhaust air to pre-condition the outside air to a more manageable entering air temperature.

#### HVAC CONTROLS

Room temperature controls including providing 110VAC power to vicinity of terminal units. Room humidity controls including providing 110VAC power to vicinity of devices.

#### FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM:

Chosen contractor will be responsible a complete wet fire protection system as well as extending this changed system into the new spaces being constructed. This includes all required components including but not necessarily limited to:

Fire sprinkler piping Fire sprinkler heads Risers Standpipes Flow switches Pressure switches

> Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

FIRE ALARM SYSTEM - MUST BE SIEMENS AND BE IDENTICAL AND/OR 100% COMPATIBLE WITH THE EXISTING SYSTEM.

New fire alarm system devices Smoke detectors Fire alarm control module Pull stations Flow/pressure switches Speaker/horn/strobes Annunciator panel Control panel Connection to existing system All required system testing and certification.

Plumbing Systems - the chosen contractor is responsible for providing and installing all domestic water supply and waste/vent lines as well as a hot water recirculation line according to the applicable drawings, specifications and building codes. In addition, provide and install all toilets, sinks, and faucets. Toilets shall be wall hung with carrier, sinks to be wall hung with splash protection, and faucets shall be Chicago with wrist blade handles and ceramic discs. No automatic faucets shall be permitted.

Electrical Systems - The chosen contractor is responsible for all electrical work including but not limited to feeder circuits, panels, breakers (includes for switch gear and motor control center) , branch circuits, transformers, fire alarm power, HVAC controls power, lighting circuits and fixtures, switches, receptacles, lighting controllers, back-up batteries, exit signs, main disconnect switch for the CT, disconnect switches in panel room, back lighting for ceiling mural, ceiling mural itself, TVCC, security access control, sound masking,

> Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

lightning protection, and testing and labeling of everything electrical.

#### 3. Project Management

Based on the above list of work items the general contractor selected must successfully manage a wide variety of trades and tasks, coordinate just-in-time delivery of large amounts of materials, get those materials to the job site, and schedule the necessary labor to construct various parts of this project in a timely fashion. Therefore, a critical aspect of this contract is construction management including but not necessarily limited to:

- scheduling using the critical-path-method
- running and documenting an OSHA-compliant construction safety program
- managing job site access and security
- getting all employees VA ID badges
- managing the separation of construction activities from on-going hospital patient-care operations
- managing periodic utility shutdowns including appropriate Lockout/Tagout procedures
- implementing and maintaining required Interim Life Safety Measures as needed
- acquiring permits for and managing hot work operations
- coordinating with VA construction personnel and other VA hospital personnel to maintain acceptable conditions for all on-going hospital functions.

New VA Safety Requirement

Chosen contractor shall provide documentation that indicates that said contractor has no more than three serious, or one repeat, or one willful OSHA or EPA violation(s) in the past 3 years and has an Experience Modification Rate (EMR) of equal to or less than 1.0.

The VA will hold weekly Progress/Coordination Meetings to report and plan construction activities. The VA has contracted with outside architects, engineers, and other professionals to provide consultation

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

services for this project. The VA Contracting staff will coordinate as necessary between and among the various professionals and the general contractor and his team to provide answers to Requests For Information, etc. The selected general contractor will be responsible for providing agendas, minutes, lists of pending action items, schedules etc. at these weekly meetings.

#### 4. General

Normal working hours for construction are 8:00 am to 4:30 pm, Monday through Friday with all Federal Holidays recognized as non-working days. However, the nature of some of the work for this project in order to keep adjacent patient-care operations functioning will require some construction tasks to take place evenings, nights, weekends and/or holidays. The successful contractor will need to coordinate when this kind of work can be performed with the VA's contracting officer or COR (Contracting Officer's Representative). This construction contract will not separately account for any non-normal hours as it affects the contractor's employee pay. Davis-Bacon wage rates will apply and overtime pay must be paid to contractor employees who work more than 40 hours per week.

Parking at the SLC VA Medical Center campus is extremely limited, and priority is given to VA patients, visitors, and staff. The general contractor and all subcontractors will need to make off-site arrangements for construction employee parking or arrange alternative worker transportation.

There is also very limited space for staging and storage of construction materials. Arrangements must be made by all contractors to store most materials and equipment at a location other than this VA campus.

The Dept. of Veterans Affairs (VA) requires strict adherence to the Code of Federal Regulations 29, Part 1926, along with Infection Control Procedures and Interim Life Safety Measures that are contained in the contract drawings. This includes the requirement that the contractor have a "Competent Person" on the job at all times (must have a 30-hour OSHA card), and that all contractor employees have received a minimum

> Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

of ten (10) hours of OSHA construction safety training or equivalent. All contractor employees will be required to pass a thorough background check, including fingerprinting, prior to receiving the required identification badges.

- B. DEDUCT ALTERNATE A: Shell OT/PT Gym: Do not complete any of the interior walls or finishes at the OT/PT gym. Complete the exterior walls with insulation and vapor barrier (but no gyp bd) and electrical rough-in. Otherwise Shell the area and all associated rooms and offices within. Substitute metal stud wall with gyp bd one side for the common corridor wall and/or Window Type CC, DD, and EE.C.
- C. **DEDUCT ALTERNATE B:** Stairway: Delete Area 'B' Stairway entirely from the project scope including footings, foundations, structural framing, exterior walls and finishes, roof, window, doors, interior finishes, HVAC, power, lighting, auxiliary systems, etc. At walls common with adjacent space that will become exterior wall by deletion of Stair B, continue adjacent exterior wall/window system for a complete, continuous exterior thermal envelope.
- D. **DEDUCT ALTERNATE C:** Mechanical Screening Enclosure: Delete the Mechanical Screening Enclosure from the project scope.
- E. DEDUCT ALTERNATE D: Elevator: Delete Elevator "E5" from the project scope. All rough-in shall remain in the base bid. This alternate deducts the elevator cab, hydraulics, operators, and controls. Power feeds to the equipment room shall remain in the base bid and the shaft should be enclosed and have painted drywall to match surrounding finishes to accommodate the future installation of the finish equipment.
- F. DEDUCT ALTERNATE E: Commissioning: Remove commissioning from the project scope. Delete all contractor provide commissioning as specified in Specifications 019100, 210800, 220800, 230800, 260800, 270800, and 280800.
- G. DEDUCT ALTERNATE F: Thermostats: Reduce Thermostats in the project scope: Remove FCU-8, and replace FCU-1 with a larger unit for same total tonnage as 8 and 1 combined. Remove FCU-18, and replace FCU-4 with a larger unit for same total tonnage as 18 and 4 combined. Remove

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

29 and replace 21 with larger unit for same total tonnage as 21 and 29 combined. Remove FCU-30 & replace FCU-13 with larger for same total tonnage as 30 and 13 combined. Remove FCU-5 and replace 27a with larger unit for same total tonnage as 5 and 27a combined. Remove FCU-23b & replace FCU-23a with larger unit for same total tonnage as 23b and 23a combined. Reconfigure duct work for reduced fancoils to serve space.

- H. DEDUCT ALTERNATE G: Canopy: Delete Drop-off Canopy from the project scope entirely, including footings, structural framing, roofing, metal flashings, gutters, downspouts, lighting, power, etc.
- I. DEDUCT ALTERNATE H: Eliminate Exterior Landscaping: Remove all landscaping. This includes trees, gravel and sod. Maintain site sidewalks and hardscape.
- J. DEDUCT ALTERNATE J: Eliminate Exterior Improvements: Remove all exterior improvements except landscaping and entrance sidewalk. This includes demolition of hardscape, demolition of softscape, re-pave drive aisle, painting marks, curb and gutter, associated signs, Side walk, gravel, and Bollards.
- K. DEDUCT ALTERNATE K: Interior Storefront Systems: \*\*Delete Interior Storefront System Window Types `K', `L', `M', `S', `T', `U', `V', `W', `X', `Y', `Z', and `GG' from the project scope and replace with metal studs and gyp bd to match adjacent wall type. For doors in the deleted window types replace the aluminum door frames with painted Hollow Metal Door frames.
- L. DEDUCT ALTERNATE L: Metal Soffit System: Delete metal soffit and replace with 1" EIFS at all First Floor Plan soffits except: the Dropoff Canopy and the Main entry overhang area. Architect to choose from manufacturer's full range of colors. Relief joint patterning to be provided by architect after alternate is accepted.
- M. DEDUCT ALTERNATE M: CM4, CM8, CM12 and CT8 light fixtures: Remove CM4(W), CM8(W), CM12 and CT8 light fixtures from the project. Provide 150 G4 fixture to replace them. 80 of the G4 fixtures must have dimmable ballast and will be dimmed by the photocell. Verify all lighting controls will function the same as original design. Location will be directed by architect/engineer.

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

- N. DEDUCT ALTERNATE N: Light Coves: Remove metal stud and gyp bd framed light coves, and light fixture type TX2, from Corridors 2F00B, 2F00C, 2F00D, 2F00E, 2F00F, 2F00G, 2F00H, Conference Room 2F10, Break Rooms 2F12 and 2F14, and Resident Room 2F16. Maintain the light cove in the Lobby areas. Provide 80 G4 lighting fixtures to replace TX2 lighting. Location will be directed by architect/engineer. Corridor lighting will be controlled in the same manner the cove lighting was controlled.
- O. DEDUCT ALTERNATE P: Serpentine Sidewalk: Delete concrete walk that starts near the fire hydrant at the north end of the project site and eventually passes underneath the new overhang of the buildings addition. Also, remove the circular area of concrete that the path crosses and adjoins. Delete all pole lighting fixtures along serpentine sidewalk.
- P. DEDUCT ALTERNATE Q: Card Readers at Offices/Conference Room/Break Rooms: Remove all card readers from offices, open offices, conference rooms, break rooms, exam rooms, consultation rooms, storage rooms, quite room, and virtual room. Card reader for first floor prosthetics storage is to remain. Rough in for card readers is to remain. (39 card readers)
- Q. **DEDUCT ALTERNATE R:** Card Readers at Closets: Remove all card readers from closet locations. Card reader for IT closet is to remain. Rough in for card readers is to remain. (13 card readers)
- R. **DEDUCT ALTERNATE S:** Patient Lift: Delete Arjo Patient Lift from project scope. Maintain electrical to power future lift system.
- S. **DEDUCT ALTERNATE T: S**ound Masking System: Remove Cambridge Sound Masking System from project scope.
- T. **DEDUCT ALTERNATE U:** Roofing: Alternate Manufacturers and .60 mil thickness allowed. Color requirements of roofing must still be maintained.

#### 1.3 SPECIFICATIONS AND DRAWINGS FOR CONTRACTOR

A. AFTER AWARD OF CONTRACT, Two sets of specifications and drawings will be furnished. These drawings and specifications will consist of those returned by prospective bidders.

> Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

B. Additional sets of drawings may be made by the Contractor, at Contractor's expense, from PDF electronic filed on CD's furnished by Issuing Office.

#### 1.4 CONSTRUCTION SECURITY REQUIREMENTS

- A. Security Plan:
  - The security plan defines both physical and administrative security procedures that will remain effective for the entire duration of the project.
  - The General Contractor is responsible for assuring that all subcontractors working on the project and their employees also comply with these regulations.
- B. Security Procedures:
  - General Contractor's employees shall not enter the project site without appropriate badge. They may also be subject to inspection of their personal effects when entering or leaving the project site.
  - 2. For working outside the "regular hours" as defined in the contract, The General Contractor shall give 3 days notice to the Contracting Officer so that security escort arrangements can be provided for the employees. This notice is separate from any notices required for utility shutdown described later in this section.
  - 3. No photography of VA premises is allowed without written permission of the Contracting Officer.
  - 4. VA reserves the right to close down or shut down the project site and order General Contractor's employees off the premises in the event of a national emergency. The General Contractor may return to the site only with the written approval of the Contracting Officer.
- C. Key Control:
  - The General Contractor shall provide duplicate keys and lock combinations to the COR for the purpose of security inspections of every area of project including tool boxes and parked machines and take any emergency action.
  - The General Contractor shall turn over all permanent lock cylinders to the VA locksmith for permanent installation. See Section 08 71 00, DOOR HARDWARE and coordinate.

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

- D. Document Control:
  - Before starting any work, the General Contractor/Sub Contractors shall submit an electronic security memorandum describing the approach to following goals and maintaining confidentiality of "sensitive information".
  - 2. The General Contractor is responsible for safekeeping of all drawings, project manual and other project information. This information shall be shared only with those with a specific need to accomplish the project.
  - 3. Certain documents, sketches, videos or photographs and drawings may be marked "Law Enforcement Sensitive" or "Sensitive Unclassified". Secure such information in separate containers and limit the access to only those who will need it for the project. Return the information to the Contracting Officer upon request.
  - These security documents shall not be removed or transmitted from the project site without the written approval of Contracting Officer.
  - 5. All paper waste or electronic media such as CD's and diskettes shall be shredded and destroyed in a manner acceptable to the VA.
  - 6. Notify Contracting Officer and Site Security Officer immediately when there is a loss or compromise of "sensitive information".
  - All electronic information shall be stored in specified location following VA standards and procedures using an Engineering Document Management Software (EDMS).
    - a. Security, access and maintenance of all project drawings, both scanned and electronic shall be performed and tracked through the EDMS system.
    - b. "Sensitive information" including drawings and other documents may be attached to e-mail provided all VA encryption procedures are followed.
- E. Motor Vehicle Restrictions
  - Vehicle authorization request shall be required for any vehicle entering the site and such request shall be submitted 24 hours before the date and time of access. Access shall be restricted to picking up and dropping off materials and supplies.

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

2. Separate permits shall be issued for General Contractor and its employees for parking in designated areas only.

#### 1.5 FIRE SAFETY

- A. Applicable Publications: Publications listed below form part of this Article to extent referenced. Publications are referenced in text by basic designations only.
  - American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM): E84-2009.....Surface Burning Characteristics of Building Materials
  - 2. National Fire Protection Association (NFPA): 10-2010.....Standard for Portable Fire Extinguishers 30-2008.....Flammable and Combustible Liquids Code 51B-2009....Standard for Fire Prevention During Welding, Cutting and Other Hot Work 70-2011....National Electrical Code 101-2012....Life Safety Code 241-2009....Standard for Safeguarding Construction, Alteration, and Demolition Operations
  - 3. Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA): 29 CFR 1926.....Safety and Health Regulations for Construction
  - 4. VHA Directive 2005-007
- B. Fire Safety Plan: Establish and maintain a fire protection program in accordance with 29 CFR 1926. Prior to start of work, prepare a plan detailing project-specific fire safety measures, including periodic status reports, and submit to COR and Facility Safety Manager Officer for review for compliance with VHA Directive 2005-007, NFPA 101 and NFPA 241.Prior to beginning work, all employees of the contractor and/or any subcontractors shall undergo a safety briefing provided by the general contractor's competent person per OSHA requirements. This briefing shall include information on the construction limits, VAMC safety guidelines, means of egress, break areas, work hours, locations of restrooms, use of VAMC equipment, etc. Provide documentation to the COR that all construction workers have undergone contractor's safety briefing.

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

 $01 \ 00 \ 00 \ - \ 14$ 

- C. Site and Building Access: Maintain free and unobstructed access to facility emergency services and for fire, police and other emergency response forces in accordance with NFPA 241.
- D. Separate temporary facilities, such as trailers, storage sheds, and dumpsters, from existing buildings and new construction by distances in accordance with NFPA 241. For small facilities with less than 6 m (20 feet) exposing overall length, separate by 3m (10 feet).
- E. Temporary Construction Partitions:
  - 1. Install and maintain temporary construction partitions to provide smoke-tight separations between construction areas the areas that are described in phasing requirements and adjoining areas. Construct partitions of gypsum board or treated plywood (flame spread rating of 25 or less in accordance with ASTM E84) on both sides of fire retardant treated wood or metal steel studs. Extend the partitions through suspended ceilings to floor slab deck or roof. Seal joints and penetrations. At door openings, install Class C, ¾ hour fire/smoke rated doors with self-closing devices.
  - 2. Install one-hour fire-rated temporary construction partitions as shown on drawings to maintain integrity of existing exit stair enclosures, exit passageways, fire-rated enclosures of hazardous areas, horizontal exits, smoke barriers, vertical shafts and openings enclosures.
  - 3. Close openings in smoke barriers and fire-rated construction to maintain fire ratings. Seal penetrations with listed throughpenetration firestop materials in accordance with Section 07 84 00, FIRESTOPPING.
- F. Temporary Heating and Electrical: Install, use and maintain installations in accordance with 29 CFR 1926, NFPA 241 and NFPA 70.
- G. Means of Egress: Do not block exiting for occupied buildings, including paths from exits to roads. Minimize disruptions and coordinate with COR and facility Safety Manager Officer.
- H. Egress Routes for Construction Workers: Maintain free and unobstructed egress. Inspect daily. Report findings and corrective actions weekly to COR and facility Safety Manager Officer.

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

- I. Fire Extinguishers: Provide and maintain extinguishers in construction areas and temporary storage areas in accordance with 29 CFR 1926, NFPA 241 and NFPA 10.
- J. Flammable and Combustible Liquids: Store, dispense and use liquids in accordance with 29 CFR 1926, NFPA 241 and NFPA 30.
- K. Standpipes: Install and extend standpipes up with each floor in accordance with 29 CFR 1926 and NFPA 241. Do not charge wet standpipes subject to freezing until weather protected.
- L. Sprinklers: Install, test and activate new automatic sprinklers prior to removing existing sprinklers.
- M. Existing Fire Protection: Do not impair automatic sprinklers, smoke and heat detection, and fire alarm systems, except for portions immediately under construction, and temporarily for connections. Provide fire watch for impairments more than 4 hours in a 24-hour period. Request interruptions in accordance with Article, OPERATIONS AND STORAGE AREAS, and coordinate with COR and facility Safety Manager Officer. All existing or temporary fire protection systems (fire alarms, sprinklers) located in construction areas shall be tested as coordinated with the medical center. Parameters for the testing and results of any tests performed shall be recorded by the medical center and copies provided to the COR.
- N. Smoke Detectors: Prevent accidental operation. Remove temporary covers at end of work operations each day. Coordinate with COR and facility Safety Manager Officer.
- O. Hot Work: Perform and safeguard hot work operations in accordance with NFPA 241 and NFPA 51B. Coordinate with COR. Obtain permits from facility Safety Manager Officer at least 72 hours in advance. Designate contractor's responsible project-site fire prevention program manager to permit hot work.
- P. Fire Hazard Prevention and Safety Inspections: Inspect entire construction areas weekly. Coordinate with, and report findings and corrective actions weekly to COR and facility Safety Manager Officer.
- Q. Smoking: Smoking is prohibited in and adjacent to construction areas inside existing buildings and additions under construction. In separate

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

and detached buildings under construction, smoking is prohibited except in designated smoking rest areas.

- R. Dispose of waste and debris in accordance with NFPA 241. Remove from buildings daily.
- S. Perform other construction, alteration and demolition operations in accordance with 29 CFR 1926.
- T. If required, submit documentation to the COR that personnel have been trained in the fire safety aspects of working in areas with impaired structural or compartmentalization features.

#### 1.6 OPERATIONS AND STORAGE AREAS

- A. The Contractor shall confine all operations (including storage of materials) on Government premises to areas authorized or approved by the Contracting Officer. The Contractor shall hold and save the Government, its officers and agents, free and harmless from liability of any nature occasioned by the Contractor's performance.
- B. Temporary buildings (e.g., storage sheds, shops, offices) and utilities may be erected by the Contractor only with the approval of the Contracting Officer and shall be built with labor and materials furnished by the Contractor without expense to the Government. The temporary buildings and utilities shall remain the property of the Contractor and shall be removed by the Contractor at its expense upon completion of the work. With the written consent of the Contracting Officer, the buildings and utilities may be abandoned and need not be removed.
- C. The Contractor shall, under regulations prescribed by the Contracting Officer, use only established roadways, or use temporary roadways constructed by the Contractor when and as authorized by the Contracting Officer. When materials are transported in prosecuting the work, vehicles shall not be loaded beyond the loading capacity recommended by the manufacturer of the vehicle or prescribed by any Federal, State, or local law or regulation. When it is necessary to cross curbs or sidewalks, the Contractor shall protect them from damage. The Contractor shall repair or pay for the repair of any damaged curbs, sidewalks, or roads.

#### (FAR 52.236-10)

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

- D. Working space and space available for storing materials shall be as shown on the drawings.
- E. Execute work in such a manner as to interfere as little as possible with work being done by others. Keep roads clear of construction materials, debris, standing construction equipment and vehicles at all times.
- F. Execute work so as to interfere as little as possible with normal functioning of Medical Center as a whole, including operations of utility services, fire protection systems and any existing equipment, and with work being done by others. Use of equipment and tools that transmit vibrations and noises through the building structure, are not permitted in buildings that are occupied, during construction, jointly by patients or medical personnel, and Contractor's personnel, except as permitted by COR where required by limited working space.
  - 1. Do not store materials and equipment in other than assigned areas.
  - Schedule delivery of materials and equipment to immediate construction working areas within buildings in use by Department of Veterans Affairs in quantities sufficient for not more than two work days. Provide unobstructed access to Medical Center areas required to remain in operation.
  - 3. Where access by Medical Center personnel to vacated portions of buildings is not required, storage of Contractor's materials and equipment will be permitted subject to fire and safety requirements.
- G. Phasing: To insure such executions, Contractor shall furnish the COR with a schedule of approximate phasing dates on which the Contractor intends to accomplish work in each specific area of site, building or portion thereof. In addition, Contractor shall notify the COR two weeks in advance of the proposed date of starting work in each specific area of site, building or portion thereof. Arrange such phasing dates to insure accomplishment of this work in successive phases mutually agreeable to Medical Center Director, COR and Contractor, as follows:

Phase I: Phase II:

H. Building(s) No.(s) B01 will be occupied during performance of work.

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

 Certain areas of Building(s) No. (s) B01 will be occupied by Medical Center personnel for various periods as listed below:

AREA	PERIOD
(a)Main Level	Entire Construction Period
(b)	
(c)	
(d)	

Contractor shall take all measures and provide all material necessary for protecting existing equipment and property in affected areas of construction against dust and debris, so that equipment and affected areas to be used in the Medical Centers operations will not be hindered. Contractor shall permit access to Department of Veterans Affairs personnel and patients through other construction areas which serve as routes of access to such affected areas and equipment. Coordinate alteration work in areas occupied by Department of Veterans Affairs so that Medical Center operations will continue during the construction period.

- Immediate areas of alterations not mentioned in preceding Subparagraph 1 will be temporarily vacated while alterations are performed.
- I. Construction Fence: Before construction operations begin, Contractor shall provide a chain link construction fence, 2.1m (seven feet) minimum height, around the construction area indicated on the drawings. Provide gates as required for access with necessary hardware, including hasps and padlocks. Fasten fence fabric to terminal posts with tension bands and to line posts and top and bottom rails with tie wires spaced at maximum 375mm (15 inches). Bottom of fences shall extend to 25mm (one inch) above grade. Remove the fence when directed by COR.
- J. When a building is turned over to Contractor, Contractor shall accept entire responsibility therefore.
  - Contractor shall maintain a minimum temperature of 4 degrees C (40 degrees F) at all times, except as otherwise specified.

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

- 2. Contractor shall maintain in operating condition existing fire protection and alarm equipment. In connection with fire alarm equipment, Contractor shall make arrangements for pre-inspection of site with Fire Department or Company (Department of Veterans Affairs or municipal) whichever will be required to respond to an alarm from Contractor's employee or watchman.
- K. Utilities Services: Maintain existing utility services for Medical Center at all times. Provide temporary facilities, labor, materials, equipment, connections, and utilities to assure uninterrupted services. Where necessary to cut existing water, steam, gases, sewer or air pipes, or conduits, wires, cables, etc. of utility services or of fire protection systems and communications systems (including telephone), they shall be cut and capped at suitable places where shown; or, in absence of such indication, where directed by COR.
  - 1. No utility service such as water, gas, steam, sewers or electricity, or fire protection systems and communications systems may be interrupted without prior approval of COR. Electrical work shall be accomplished with all affected circuits or equipment de-energized. When an electrical outage cannot be accomplished, work on any energized circuits or equipment shall not commence without the Medical Center Director's prior knowledge and written approval. Refer to specification Sections 26 05 11, REQUIREMENTS FOR ELECTRICAL INSTALLATIONS, 27 05 11 REQUIREMENTS FOR COMMUNICATIONS INSTALLATIONS and 28 05 11, REQUIREMENTS FOR ELECTRONIC SAFETY AND SECURITY INSTALLATIONS for additional requirements.
  - 2. Contractor shall submit a request to interrupt any such services to COR, in writing, 48 hours in advance of proposed interruption. Request shall state reason, date, exact time of, and approximate duration of such interruption.
  - 3. Contractor will be advised (in writing) of approval of request, or of which other date and/or time such interruption will cause least inconvenience to operations of Medical Center. Interruption time approved by Medical Center may occur at other than Contractor's normal working hours.

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

- Major interruptions of any system must be requested, in writing, at least 15 calendar days prior to the desired time and shall be performed as directed by the COR.
- 5. In case of a contract construction emergency, service will be interrupted on approval of COR. Such approval will be confirmed in writing as soon as practical.
- 6. Whenever it is required that a connection fee be paid to a public utility provider for new permanent service to the construction project, for such items as water, sewer, electricity, gas or steam, payment of such fee shall be the responsibility of the Government and not the Contractor.
- L. Abandoned Lines: All service lines such as wires, cables, conduits, ducts, pipes and the like, and their hangers or supports, which are to be abandoned but are not required to be entirely removed, shall be sealed, capped or plugged. The lines shall not be capped in finished areas, but shall be removed and sealed, capped or plugged in ceilings, within furred spaces, in unfinished areas, or within walls or partitions; so that they are completely behind the finished surfaces.
- M. To minimize interference of construction activities with flow of Medical Center traffic, comply with the following:
  - Keep roads, walks and entrances to grounds, to parking and to occupied areas of buildings clear of construction materials, debris and standing construction equipment and vehicles. Wherever excavation for new utility lines cross existing roads, at least one lane must be open to traffic at all times.
  - 2. Method and scheduling of required cutting, altering and removal of existing roads, walks and entrances must be approved by the COR.
- N. Coordinate the work for this contract with other construction operations as directed by COR. This includes the scheduling of traffic and the use of roadways, as specified in Article, USE OF ROADWAYS.
- O. Coordination of Construction with Cemetery Director: The burial activities at a National Cemetery shall take precedence over construction activities. The Contractor must cooperate and coordinate with the Cemetery Director, through the COR, in arranging construction schedule to cause the least possible interference with cemetery

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

activities in actual burial areas. Construction noise during the interment services shall not disturb the service. Trucks and workmen shall not pass through the service area during this period:

- The Contractor is required to discontinue his work sufficiently in advance of Easter Sunday, Mother's Day, Father's Day, Memorial Day, Veteran's Day and/or Federal holidays, to permit him to clean up all areas of operation adjacent to existing burial plots before these dates.
- Cleaning up shall include the removal of all equipment, tools, materials and debris and leaving the areas in a clean, neat condition.

#### 1.7 ALTERATIONS

- A. Survey: Before any work is started, the Contractor shall make a thorough survey with the COR and a representative of VA Supply Service, of areas of buildings in which alterations occur and areas which are anticipated routes of access, and furnish a report, signed by all three, to the Contracting Officer. This report shall list by rooms and spaces:
  - Existing condition and types of resilient flooring, doors, windows, walls and other surfaces not required to be altered throughout affected areas of buildings.
  - Existence and conditions of items such as plumbing fixtures and accessories, electrical fixtures, equipment, venetian blinds, shades, etc., required by drawings to be either reused or relocated, or both.
  - Shall note any discrepancies between drawings and existing conditions at site.
  - 4. Shall designate areas for working space, materials storage and routes of access to areas within buildings where alterations occur and which have been agreed upon by Contractor and COR.
- B. Any items required by drawings to be either reused or relocated or both, found during this survey to be nonexistent, or in opinion of COR and/or Supply Representative, to be in such condition that their use is impossible or impractical, shall be furnished and/or replaced by Contractor with new items in accordance with specifications which will

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

be furnished by Government. Provided the contract work is changed by reason of this subparagraph B, the contract will be modified accordingly, under provisions of clause entitled "DIFFERING SITE CONDITIONS" (FAR 52.236-2) and "CHANGES" (FAR 52.243-4 and VAAR 852.236-88).

- C. Re-Survey: Thirty days before expected partial or final inspection date, the Contractor and COR together shall make a thorough re-survey of the areas of buildings involved. They shall furnish a report on conditions then existing, of resilient flooring, doors, windows, walls and other surfaces as compared with conditions of same as noted in first condition survey report:
  - Re-survey report shall also list any damage caused by Contractor to such flooring and other surfaces, despite protection measures; and, will form basis for determining extent of repair work required of Contractor to restore damage caused by Contractor's workmen in executing work of this contract.
- D. Protection: Provide the following protective measures:
  - Wherever existing roof surfaces are disturbed they shall be protected against water infiltration. In case of leaks, they shall be repaired immediately upon discovery.
  - Temporary protection against damage for portions of existing structures and grounds where work is to be done, materials handled and equipment moved and/or relocated.
  - 3. Protection of interior of existing structures at all times, from damage, dust and weather inclemency. Wherever work is performed, floor surfaces that are to remain in place shall be adequately protected prior to starting work, and this protection shall be maintained intact until all work in the area is completed.

#### **1.8 INFECTION PREVENTION MEASURES**

- A. Implement the requirements of VAMC's Infection Control Risk Assessment (ICRA) team. ICRA Group may monitor dust in the vicinity of the construction work and require the Contractor to take corrective action immediately if the safe levels are exceeded.
- B. Establish and maintain a dust control program as part of the contractor's infection preventive measures in accordance with the

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

guidelines provided by ICRA Group as specified here. Prior to start of work, prepare a plan detailing project-specific dust protection measures, including periodic status reports, and submit to COR and Facility ICRA team for review for compliance with contract requirements in accordance with Section 01 33 23, SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCT DATA AND SAMPLES.

- All personnel involved in the construction or renovation activity shall be educated and trained in infection prevention measures established by the medical center.
- C. Medical center Infection Control personnel shall monitor for airborne disease (e.g. aspergillosis) as appropriate during construction. A baseline of conditions may be established by the medical center prior to the start of work and periodically during the construction stage to determine impact of construction activities on indoor air quality. In addition:
  - 1. The COR and VAMC Infection Control personnel shall review pressure differential monitoring documentation to verify that pressure differentials in the construction zone and in the patient-care rooms are appropriate for their settings. The requirement for negative air pressure in the construction zone shall depend on the location and type of activity. Upon notification, the contractor shall implement corrective measures to restore proper pressure differentials as needed.
  - In case of any problem, the medical center, along with assistance from the contractor, shall conduct an environmental assessment to find and eliminate the source.
- D. In general, following preventive measures shall be adopted during construction to keep down dust and prevent mold.
  - Dampen debris to keep down dust and provide temporary construction partitions in existing structures where directed by COR. Blank off ducts and diffusers to prevent circulation of dust into occupied areas during construction.
  - 2. Do not perform dust producing tasks within occupied areas without the approval of the COR. For construction in any areas that will

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

remain jointly occupied by the medical Center and Contractor's workers, the Contractor shall:

- a. Provide dust proof fire-rated temporary drywall construction barriers to completely separate construction from the operational areas of the hospital in order to contain dirt debris and dust. Barriers shall be sealed and made presentable on hospital occupied side. Install a self-closing rated door in a metal frame, commensurate with the partition, to allow worker access. Maintain negative air at all times. A fire retardant polystyrene, 6-mil thick or greater plastic barrier meeting local fire codes may be used where dust control is the only hazard, and an agreement is reached with the COR and Medical Center.
- b. HEPA filtration is required where the exhaust dust may reenter the breathing zone. Contractor shall verify that construction exhaust to exterior is not reintroduced to the medical center through intake vents, or building openings. Install HEPA (High Efficiency Particulate Accumulator) filter vacuum system rated at 95% capture of 0.3 microns including pollen, mold spores and dust particles. Insure continuous negative air pressures occurring within the work area. HEPA filters should have ASHRAE 85 or other prefilter to extend the useful life of the HEPA. Provide both primary and secondary filtrations units. Exhaust hoses shall be heavy duty, flexible steel reinforced and exhausted so that dust is not reintroduced to the medical center.
- c. Adhesive Walk-off/Carpet Walk-off Mats, minimum 600mm x 900mm (24" x 36"), shall be used at all interior transitions from the construction area to occupied medical center area. These mats shall be changed as often as required to maintain clean work areas directly outside construction area at all times.
- d. Vacuum and wet mop all transition areas from construction to the occupied medical center at the end of each workday. Vacuum shall utilize HEPA filtration. Maintain surrounding area frequently. Remove debris as they are created. Transport these outside the construction area in containers with tightly fitting lids.

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

- e. The contractor shall not haul debris through patient-care areas without prior approval of the COR and the Medical Center. When, approved, debris shall be hauled in enclosed dust proof containers or wrapped in plastic and sealed with duct tape. No sharp objects should be allowed to cut through the plastic. Wipe down the exterior of the containers with a damp rag to remove dust. All equipment, tools, material, etc. transported through occupied areas shall be made free from dust and moisture by vacuuming and wipe down.
- f. Using a HEPA vacuum, clean inside the barrier and vacuum ceiling tile prior to replacement. Any ceiling access panels opened for investigation beyond sealed areas shall be sealed immediately when unattended.
- g. There shall be no standing water during construction. This includes water in equipment drip pans and open containers within the construction areas. All accidental spills must be cleaned up and dried within 12 hours. Remove and dispose of porous materials that remain damp for more than 72 hours.
- h. At completion, remove construction barriers and ceiling protection carefully, outside of normal work hours. Vacuum and clean all surfaces free of dust after the removal.
- E. Final Cleanup:
  - Upon completion of project, or as work progresses, remove all construction debris from above ceiling, vertical shafts and utility chases that have been part of the construction.
  - Perform HEPA vacuum cleaning of all surfaces in the construction area. This includes walls, ceilings, cabinets, furniture (built-in or free standing), partitions, flooring, etc.
  - 3. All new air ducts shall be cleaned prior to final inspection.

#### 1.9 DISPOSAL AND RETENTION

- A. Materials and equipment accruing from work removed and from demolition of buildings or structures, or parts thereof, shall be disposed of as follows:
  - Reserved items which are to remain property of the Government are identified by attached tags or noted on drawings or in

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

specifications as items to be stored. Items that remain property of the Government shall be removed or dislodged from present locations in such a manner as to prevent damage which would be detrimental to re-installation and reuse. Store such items where directed by COR.

- 2. Items not reserved shall become property of the Contractor and be removed by Contractor from Medical Center.
- 3. Items of portable equipment and furnishings located in rooms and spaces in which work is to be done under this contract shall remain the property of the Government. When rooms and spaces are vacated by the Department of Veterans Affairs during the alteration period, such items which are NOT required by drawings and specifications to be either relocated or reused will be removed by the Government in advance of work to avoid interfering with Contractor's operation.

### 1.10 PROTECTION OF EXISTING VEGETATION, STRUCTURES, EQUIPMENT, UTILITIES, AND IMPROVEMENTS

- A. The Contractor shall preserve and protect all structures, equipment, and vegetation (such as trees, shrubs, and grass) on or adjacent to the work site, which are not to be removed and which do not unreasonably interfere with the work required under this contract. The Contractor shall only remove trees when specifically authorized to do so, and shall avoid damaging vegetation that will remain in place. If any limbs or branches of trees are broken during contract performance, or by the careless operation of equipment, or by workmen, the Contractor shall trim those limbs or branches with a clean cut and paint the cut with a tree-pruning compound as directed by the Contracting Officer.
- B. The Contractor shall protect from damage all existing improvements and utilities at or near the work site and on adjacent property of a third party, the locations of which are made known to or should be known by the Contractor. The Contractor shall repair any damage to those facilities, including those that are the property of a third party, resulting from failure to comply with the requirements of this contract or failure to exercise reasonable care in performing the work. If the Contractor fails or refuses to repair the damage promptly, the Contracting Officer may have the necessary work performed and charge the cost to the Contractor.

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

#### (FAR 52.236-9)

- C. Refer to Section 01 57 19, TEMPORARY ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROLS, for additional requirements on protecting vegetation, soils and the environment. Refer to Articles, "Alterations", "Restoration", and "Operations and Storage Areas" for additional instructions concerning repair of damage to structures and site improvements.
- D. Refer to FAR clause 52.236-7, "Permits and Responsibilities," which is included in General Conditions. A National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit is required for this project. The Contractor is considered an "operator" under the permit and has extensive responsibility for compliance with permit requirements. VA will make the permit application available at the (appropriate medical center) office. The apparent low bidder, contractor and affected subcontractors shall furnish all information and certifications that are required to comply with the permit process and permit requirements. Many of the permit requirements will be satisfied by completing construction as shown and specified. Some requirements involve the Contractor is responsible for employing best management practices. The affected activities often include, but are not limited to the following:
  - 1. Designating areas for equipment maintenance and repair;
  - Providing waste receptacles at convenient locations and provide regular collection of wastes;
  - Locating equipment wash down areas on site, and provide appropriate control of wash-waters;
  - Providing protected storage areas for chemicals, paints, solvents, fertilizers, and other potentially toxic materials; and
  - 5. Providing adequately maintained sanitary facilities.

#### 1.11 RESTORATION

A. Remove, cut, alter, replace, patch and repair existing work as necessary to install new work. Except as otherwise shown or specified, do not cut, alter or remove any structural work, and do not disturb any ducts, plumbing, steam, gas, or electric work without approval of the

> Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

COR. Existing work to be altered or extended and that is found to be defective in any way, shall be reported to the COR before it is disturbed. Materials and workmanship used in restoring work, shall conform in type and quality to that of original existing construction, except as otherwise shown or specified.

- B. Upon completion of contract, deliver work complete and undamaged. Existing work (walls, ceilings, partitions, floors, mechanical and electrical work, lawns, paving, roads, walks, etc.) disturbed or removed as a result of performing required new work, shall be patched, repaired, reinstalled, or replaced with new work, and refinished and left in as good condition as existed before commencing work.
- C. At Contractor's own expense, Contractor shall immediately restore to service and repair any damage caused by Contractor's workmen to existing piping and conduits, wires, cables, etc., of utility services or of fire protection systems and communications systems (including telephone) which are indicated on drawings and which are not scheduled for discontinuance or abandonment.
- D. Expense of repairs to such utilities and systems not shown on drawings or locations of which are unknown will be covered by adjustment to contract time and price in accordance with clause entitled "CHANGES" (FAR 52.243-4 and VAAR 852.236-88) and "DIFFERING SITE CONDITIONS" (FAR 52.236-2).

#### 1.12 PHYSICAL DATA

- A. Data and information furnished or referred to below is for the Contractor's information. The Government shall not be responsible for any interpretation of or conclusion drawn from the data or information by the Contractor.
  - The indications of physical conditions on the drawings and in the specifications are the result of site investigations by the contracted design firm.

#### (FAR 52.236-4)

B. Subsurface conditions have been developed by core borings and test pits. Logs of subsurface exploration are shown diagrammatically on drawings.

> Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

- C. A copy of the soil report will be made available for inspection by bidders upon request to the Engineering Officer at the VA Medical Center, Salt Lake City and shall be considered part of the contract documents.
- D. Government does not guarantee that other materials will not be encountered nor that proportions, conditions or character of several materials will not vary from those indicated by explorations. Bidders are expected to examine site of work and logs of borings; and, after investigation, decide for themselves character of materials and make their bids accordingly. Upon proper application to Department of Veterans Affairs, bidders will be permitted to make subsurface explorations of their own at site.

# 1.13 PROFESSIONAL SURVEYING SERVICES

A. A registered professional land surveyor or registered civil engineer whose services are retained and paid for by the Contractor shall perform services specified herein and in other specification sections. The Contractor shall certify that the land surveyor or civil engineer is not one who is a regular employee of the Contractor, and that the land surveyor or civil engineer has no financial interest in this contract.

# 1.14 LAYOUT OF WORK

A. The Contractor shall lay out the work from Government established base lines and bench marks, indicated on the drawings, and shall be responsible for all measurements in connection with the layout. The Contractor shall furnish, at Contractor's own expense, all stakes, templates, platforms, equipment, tools, materials, and labor required to lay out any part of the work. The Contractor shall be responsible for executing the work to the lines and grades that may be established or indicated by the Contracting Officer. The Contractor shall also be responsible for maintaining and preserving all stakes and other marks established by the Contracting Officer until authorized to remove them. If such marks are destroyed by the Contractor or through Contractor's negligence before their removal is authorized, the Contracting Officer may replace them and deduct the expense of the replacement from any amounts due or to become due to the Contractor.

> Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

# (FAR 52.236-17)

- B. Establish and plainly mark center lines for each building and/or addition to each existing building, and such other lines and grades that are reasonably necessary to properly assure that location, orientation, and elevations established for each such structure and/or addition, roads, parking lots, are in accordance with lines and elevations shown on contract drawings.
- C. Following completion of general mass excavation and before any other permanent work is performed, establish and plainly mark (through use of appropriate batter boards or other means) sufficient additional survey control points or system of points as may be necessary to assure proper alignment, orientation, and grade of all major features of work. Survey shall include, but not be limited to, location of lines and grades of footings, exterior walls, center lines of columns in both directions, major utilities and elevations of floor slabs:
  - Such additional survey control points or system of points thus established shall be checked and certified by a registered land surveyor or registered civil engineer. Furnish such certification to the COR before any work (such as footings, floor slabs, columns, walls, utilities and other major controlling features) is placed.
- D. During progress of work, and particularly as work progresses from floor to floor, Contractor shall have line grades and plumbness of all major form work checked and certified by a registered land surveyor or registered civil engineer as meeting requirements of contract drawings. Furnish such certification to the COR before any major items of concrete work are placed. In addition, Contractor shall also furnish to the COR certificates from a registered land surveyor or registered civil engineer that the following work is complete in every respect as required by contract drawings.
  - 1. Lines of each building and/or addition.
  - Elevations of bottoms of footings and tops of floors of each building and/or addition.
  - Lines and elevations of sewers and of all outside distribution systems.
  - 4. Lines of elevations of all swales and interment areas.

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

5. Lines and elevations of roads, streets and parking lots.

- E. Upon completion of the work, the Contractor shall furnish the COR, reproducible drawings at the scale of the contract drawings, showing the finished grade on the grid developed for constructing the work, including burial monuments and fifty foot stationing along new road centerlines. These drawings shall bear the seal of the registered land surveyor or registered civil engineer.
- F. The Contractor shall perform the surveying and layout work of this and other articles and specifications in accordance with the provisions of Article "Professional Surveying Services".

# 1.15 AS-BUILT DRAWINGS

- A. The contractor shall maintain two full size sets of as-built drawings which will be kept current during construction of the project, to include all contract changes, modifications and clarifications.
- B. All variations shall be shown in the same general detail as used in the contract drawings. To insure compliance, as-built drawings shall be made available for the COR's review, as often as requested.
- C. Contractor shall deliver two approved completed sets of as-built drawings to the COR within 15 calendar days after each completed phase and after the acceptance of the project by the COR.
- D. Paragraphs A, B, & C shall also apply to all shop drawings.

# 1.16 USE OF ROADWAYS

- A. For hauling, use only established public roads and roads on Medical Center property and, when authorized by the COR, such temporary roads which are necessary in the performance of contract work. Temporary roads shall be constructed by the Contractor at Contractor's expense. When necessary to cross curbing, sidewalks, or similar construction, they must be protected by well-constructed bridges.
- B. When new permanent roads are to be a part of this contract, Contractor may construct them immediately for use to facilitate building operations. These roads may be used by all who have business thereon within zone of building operations.
- C. When certain buildings (or parts of certain buildings) are required to be completed in advance of general date of completion, all roads

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

leading thereto must be completed and available for use at time set for completion of such buildings or parts thereof.

# 1.17 TEMPORARY USE OF MECHANICAL AND ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT

- A. Use of new installed mechanical and electrical equipment to provide heat, ventilation, plumbing, light and power will be permitted subject to compliance with the following provisions:
  - Permission to use each unit or system must be given by COR. If the equipment is not installed and maintained in accordance with the following provisions, the COR will withdraw permission for use of the equipment.
  - 2. Electrical installations used by the equipment shall be completed in accordance with the drawings and specifications to prevent damage to the equipment and the electrical systems, i.e. transformers, relays, circuit breakers, fuses, conductors, motor controllers and their overload elements shall be properly sized, coordinated and adjusted. Voltage supplied to each item of equipment shall be verified to be correct and it shall be determined that motors are not overloaded. The electrical equipment shall be thoroughly cleaned before using it and again immediately before final inspection including vacuum cleaning and wiping clean interior and exterior surfaces.
  - Units shall be properly lubricated, balanced, and aligned.
     Vibrations must be eliminated.
  - Automatic temperature control systems for preheat coils shall function properly and all safety controls shall function to prevent coil freeze-up damage.
  - 5. The air filtering system utilized shall be that which is designed for the system when complete, and all filter elements shall be replaced at completion of construction and prior to testing and balancing of system.
  - 6. All components of heat production and distribution system, metering equipment, condensate returns, and other auxiliary facilities used in temporary service shall be cleaned prior to use; maintained to prevent corrosion internally and externally during use; and cleaned, maintained and inspected prior to acceptance by the Government. Boilers, pumps, feedwater heaters and auxiliary equipment must be

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

operated as a complete system and be fully maintained by operating personnel. Boiler water must be given complete and continuous chemical treatment.

- B. Prior to final inspection, the equipment or parts used which show wear and tear beyond normal, shall be replaced with identical replacements, at no additional cost to the Government.
- C. This paragraph shall not reduce the requirements of the mechanical and electrical specifications sections.

# 1.18 TEMPORARY USE OF EXISTING ELEVATORS

A. Contractor will not be allowed the use of existing elevators. Outside type hoist shall be used by Contractor for transporting materials and equipment.

## 1.19 TEMPORARY USE OF NEW ELEVATORS

- A. The Contractor and his personnel shall be permitted use of new elevator(s) subject to the following provisions:
  - Contractor shall make arrangements with the COR for use of elevator(s). Contractor may obtain elevator(s) for exclusive use.
  - Prior to the use of elevator(s), the Contractor shall have the elevator(s) inspected and accepted by an ASME accredited, certified elevator safety inspector. The acceptance report shall be submitted to the COR.
  - 3. Submit to the COR the schedule and procedures for maintaining equipment. Indicate the day or days of the week and total hours required for maintenance. A report shall be submitted to the COR monthly indicating the type of maintenance conducted, hours used, and any repairs made to the elevator(s).
  - 4. The Contractor shall be responsible for enforcing the maintenance procedures.
  - During temporary use of elevator(s) all repairs, equipment replacement and cost of maintenance shall be the responsibility of the Contractor.
  - Personnel for operating elevator(s) shall not be provided by the Department of Veterans Affairs.
  - Contractor shall cover and provide maximum protection of the entire elevator(s) installation.

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

- 8. The Contractor shall arrange for the elevator company to perform operation of the elevator(s) so that an ASME accredited, certified elevator safety inspector can evaluate the equipment. The Contractor shall be responsible for any costs of the elevator company.
- 9. All elevator(s) parts worn or damaged during temporary use shall be removed and replaced with new parts. This shall be determined by an ASME accredited certified elevator safety inspector after temporary use and before acceptance by the Government. Submit report to the COR for approval.
- 10. Elevator shall be tested as required by the testing section of the elevator(s) specifications before acceptance by the Department of Veterans Affairs.

# 1.20 TEMPORARY TOILETS

A. Contractor may have for use of Contractor's workmen, such toilet accommodations as may be assigned to Contractor by Medical Center. Contractor shall keep such places clean and be responsible for any damage done thereto by Contractor's workmen. Failure to maintain satisfactory condition in toilets will deprive Contractor of the privilege to use such toilets.

# 1.21 AVAILABILITY AND USE OF UTILITY SERVICES

- A. The Government shall make all reasonably required amounts of utilities available to the Contractor from existing outlets and supplies, as specified in the contract. The amount to be paid by the Contractor for chargeable electrical services shall be the prevailing rates charged to the Government. The Contractor shall carefully conserve any utilities furnished without charge.
- B. The Contractor, at Contractor's expense and in a workmanlike manner satisfactory to the Contracting Officer, shall install and maintain all necessary temporary connections and distribution lines, and all meters required to measure the amount of electricity used for the purpose of determining charges. Before final acceptance of the work by the Government, the Contractor shall remove all the temporary connections, distribution lines, meters, and associated paraphernalia.

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

- C. Contractor shall install meters at Contractor's expense and furnish the Medical Center a monthly record of the Contractor's usage of electricity as hereinafter specified.
- D. Heat: Furnish temporary heat necessary to prevent injury to work and materials through dampness and cold. Use of open salamanders or any temporary heating devices which may be fire hazards or may smoke and damage finished work, will not be permitted. Maintain minimum temperatures as specified for various materials:
  - Obtain heat by connecting to Medical Center heating distribution system.
    - a. Steam is available at no cost to Contractor.
- E. Electricity (for Construction and Testing): Furnish all temporary electric services.
  - Obtain electricity by connecting to the Medical Center electrical distribution system. The Contractor shall meter and pay for electricity required for electric cranes and hoisting devices, electrical welding devices and any electrical heating devices providing temporary heat. Electricity for all other uses is available at no cost to the Contractor.
- F. Water (for Construction and Testing): Furnish temporary water service.
  - Obtain water by connecting to the Medical Center water distribution system. Provide reduced pressure backflow preventer at each connection. Water is available at no cost to the Contractor.
  - Maintain connections, pipe, fittings and fixtures and conserve water-use so none is wasted. Failure to stop leakage or other wastes will be cause for revocation (at COR's discretion) of use of water from Medical Center's system.
- G. Steam: Furnish steam system for testing required in various sections of specifications.
  - Obtain steam for testing by connecting to the Medical Center steam distribution system. Steam is available at no cost to the Contractor.
  - Maintain connections, pipe, fittings and fixtures and conserve steam-use so none is wasted. Failure to stop leakage or other waste

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

will be cause for revocation (at COR's discretion), of use of steam from the Medical Center's system.

H. Fuel: Natural and LP gas and burner fuel oil required for boiler cleaning, normal initial boiler-burner setup and adjusting, and for performing the specified boiler tests will be furnished by the Government. Fuel required for prolonged boiler-burner setup, adjustments, or modifications due to improper design or operation of boiler, burner, or control devices shall be furnished by the Contractor at Contractor's expense.

# 1.22 NEW TELEPHONE EQUIPMENT

A. The contractor shall coordinate with the work of installation of telephone equipment by others. This work shall be completed before the building is turned over to VA.

## 1.23 TESTS

- A. Pre-test mechanical and electrical equipment and systems and make corrections required for proper operation of such systems before requesting final tests. Final test will not be conducted unless pre-tested.
- B. Conduct final tests required in various sections of specifications in presence of an authorized representative of the Contracting Officer. Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, equipment, instruments, and forms, to conduct and record such tests.
- C. Mechanical and electrical systems shall be balanced, controlled and coordinated. A system is defined as the entire complex which must be coordinated to work together during normal operation to produce results for which the system is designed. For example, air conditioning supply air is only one part of entire system which provides comfort conditions for a building. Other related components are return air, exhaust air, steam, chilled water, refrigerant, hot water, controls and electricity, etc. Another example of a complex which involves several components of different disciplines is a boiler installation. Efficient and acceptable boiler operation depends upon the coordination and proper operation of fuel, combustion air, controls, steam, feedwater, condensate and other related components.

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

- D. All related components as defined above shall be functioning when any system component is tested. Tests shall be completed within a reasonably short period of time during which operating and environmental conditions remain reasonably constant.
- E. Individual test result of any component, where required, will only be accepted when submitted with the test results of related components and of the entire system.

# 1.24 INSTRUCTIONS

- A. Contractor shall furnish Maintenance and Operating manuals (hard copies and electronic) and verbal instructions when required by the various sections of the specifications and as hereinafter specified.
- B. Manuals: Maintenance and operating manuals and one compact disc (four hard copies and one electronic copy each) for each separate piece of equipment shall be delivered to the COR coincidental with the delivery of the equipment to the job site. Manuals shall be complete, detailed guides for the maintenance and operation of equipment. They shall include complete information necessary for starting, adjusting, maintaining in continuous operation for long periods of time and dismantling and reassembling of the complete units and sub-assembly components. Manuals shall include an index covering all component parts clearly cross-referenced to diagrams and illustrations. Illustrations shall include "exploded" views showing and identifying each separate item. Emphasis shall be placed on the use of special tools and instruments. The function of each piece of equipment, component, accessory and control shall be clearly and thoroughly explained. All necessary precautions for the operation of the equipment and the reason for each precaution shall be clearly set forth. Manuals must reference the exact model, style and size of the piece of equipment and system being furnished. Manuals referencing equipment similar to but of a different model, style, and size than that furnished will not be accepted.
- C. Instructions: Contractor shall provide qualified, factory-trained manufacturers' representatives to give detailed instructions to assigned Department of Veterans Affairs personnel in the operation and complete maintenance for each piece of equipment. All such training

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

will be at the job site. These requirements are more specifically detailed in the various technical sections. Instructions for different items of equipment that are component parts of a complete system, shall be given in an integrated, progressive manner. All instructors for every piece of component equipment in a system shall be available until instructions for all items included in the system have been completed. This is to assure proper instruction in the operation of inter-related systems. All instruction periods shall be at such times as scheduled by the COR and shall be considered concluded only when the COR is satisfied in regard to complete and thorough coverage. The Department of Veterans Affairs reserves the right to request the removal of, and substitution for, any instructor who, in the opinion of the COR, does not demonstrate sufficient qualifications in accordance with requirements for instructors above.

# 1.25 GOVERNMENT-FURNISHED PROPERTY

- A. The Government shall deliver to the Contractor, the Government-furnished property shown on the Schedule drawings.
- B. Equipment furnished by Government to be installed by Contractor will be furnished to Contractor at the Medical Center.
- C. Contractor shall be prepared to receive this equipment from Government and store or place such equipment not less than 90 days before Completion Date of project.
- D. Notify Contracting Officer in writing, 60 days in advance, of date on which Contractor will be prepared to receive equipment furnished by Government. Arrangements will then be made by the Government for delivery of equipment.
  - Immediately upon delivery of equipment, Contractor shall arrange for a joint inspection thereof with a representative of the Government. At such time the Contractor shall acknowledge receipt of equipment described, make notations, and immediately furnish the Government representative with a written statement as to its condition or shortages.
  - 2. Contractor thereafter is responsible for such equipment until such time as acceptance of contract work is made by the Government.

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

- E. Equipment furnished by the Government will be delivered in a partially assembled (knock down) condition in accordance with existing standard commercial practices, complete with all fittings, fastenings, and appliances necessary for connections to respective services installed under contract. All fittings and appliances (i.e., couplings, ells, tees, nipples, piping, conduits, cables, and the like) necessary to make the connection between the Government furnished equipment item and the utility stub-up shall be furnished and installed by the contractor at no additional cost to the Government.
- F. Completely assemble and install the Government furnished equipment in place ready for proper operation in accordance with specifications and drawings.
- G. Furnish supervision of installation of equipment at construction site by qualified factory trained technicians regularly employed by the equipment manufacturer.

## 1.26 RELOCATED EQUIPMENT ITEMS

- A. Contractor shall disconnect, dismantle as necessary, remove and reinstall in new location, all existing equipment and items indicated by symbol "R" or otherwise shown to be relocated by the Contractor.
- B. Perform relocation of such equipment or items at such times and in such a manner as directed by the COR.
- C. Suitably cap existing service lines, such as steam, condensate return, water, drain, gas, air, vacuum and/or electrical, whenever such lines are disconnected from equipment to be relocated. Remove abandoned lines in finished areas and cap as specified herein before under paragraph "Abandoned Lines".
- D. Provide all mechanical and electrical service connections, fittings, fastenings and any other materials necessary for assembly and installation of relocated equipment; and leave such equipment in proper operating condition.
- E. All service lines such as noted above for relocated equipment shall be in place at point of relocation ready for use before any existing equipment is disconnected. Make relocated existing equipment ready for operation or use immediately after reinstallation.

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

# 1.27 CONSTRUCTION SIGN

- A. Provide a Construction Sign where directed by the COR. All wood members shall be of framing lumber. Cover sign frame with 0.7 mm (24 gage) galvanized sheet steel nailed securely around edges and on all bearings. Provide three 100 by 100 mm (4 inch by 4 inch) posts (or equivalent round posts) set 1200 mm (four feet) into ground. Set bottom of sign level at 900 mm (three feet) above ground and secure to posts with through bolts. Make posts full height of sign. Brace posts with 50 x 100 mm (two by four inch) material as directed.
- B. Paint all surfaces of sign and posts two coats of white gloss paint. Border and letters shall be of black gloss paint, except project title which shall be blue gloss paint.
- C. Maintain sign and remove it when directed by the COR.
- D. Detail Drawing of construction sign showing required legend and other characteristics of sign is attached hereto and made a part of this specification shown on the drawings.

## 1.28 SAFETY SIGN

- A. Provide a Safety Sign where directed by COR. Face of sign shall be 19 mm (3/4 inch) thick exterior grade plywood. Provide two 100 mm by 100 mm (four by four inch) posts extending full height of sign and 900 mm (three feet) into ground. Set bottom of sign level at 1200 mm (four feet) above ground.
- B. Paint all surfaces of Safety Sign and posts with one prime coat and two coats of white gloss paint. Letters and design shall be painted with gloss paint of colors noted.
- C. Maintain sign and remove it when directed by COR.
- D. Standard Detail Drawing Number SD10000-02 (Found on VA TIL) of safety sign showing required legend and other characteristics of sign is attached hereto and is made a part of this specification shown on the drawings.
- E. Post the number of accident free days on a daily basis.

# 1.29 PHOTOGRAPHIC DOCUMENTATION

A. During the construction period through completion, provide photographic documentation of construction progress and at selected milestones including electronic indexing, navigation, storage and remote access to

> Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

the documentation, as per these specifications. The commercial photographer or the subcontractor used for this work shall meet the following qualifications:

- Demonstrable minimum experience of three (3) years in operation providing documentation and advanced indexing/navigation systems including a representative portfolio of construction projects of similar type, size, duration and complexity as the Project.
- Demonstrable ability to service projects throughout North America, which shall be demonstrated by a representative portfolio of active projects of similar type, size, duration and complexity as the Project.
- B. Photographic documentation elements:
  - Each digital image shall be taken with a professional grade camera with minimum size of 6 megapixels (MP) capable of producing 200x250mm (8 x 10 inch) prints with a minimum of 2272 x 1704 pixels and 400x500mm (16 x 20 inch) prints with a minimum 2592 x 1944 pixels.
  - Indexing and navigation system shall utilize actual AUTOCAD construction drawings, making such drawings interactive on an online interface. For all documentation referenced herein, indexing and navigation must be organized by both time (date-stamped) and location throughout the project.
  - 3. Documentation shall combine indexing and navigation system with inspection-grade digital photography designed to capture actual conditions throughout construction and at critical milestones. Documentation shall be accessible on-line through use of an internet connection. Documentation shall allow for secure multiple-user access, simultaneously, on-line.
  - 4. Before construction, the building pad, adjacent streets, roadways, parkways, driveways, curbs, sidewalks, landscaping, adjacent utilities and adjacent structures surrounding the building pad and site shall be documented. Overlapping photographic techniques shall be used to insure maximum coverage. Indexing and navigation accomplished through interactive architectural drawings. If site work or pad preparation is extensive, this documentation may be

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

required immediately before construction and at several predetermined intervals before building work commences.

- 5. Construction progress for all trades shall be tracked at predetermined intervals, but not less than once every thirty (30) calendar days ("Progressions"). Progression documentation shall track both the exterior and interior construction of the building. Exterior Progressions shall track 360 degrees around the site and each building. Interior Progressions shall track interior improvements beginning when stud work commences and continuing until Project completion.
- 6. As-built condition of pre-slab utilities and site utilities shall be documented prior to pouring slabs, placing concrete and/or backfilling. This process shall include all underground and in-slab utilities within the building(s) envelope(s) and utility runs in the immediate vicinity of the building(s) envelope(s). This may also include utilities enclosed in slab-on-deck in multi-story buildings. Overlapping photographic techniques shall be used to insure maximum coverage. Indexing and navigation accomplished through interactive site utility plans.
- 7. As-built conditions of mechanical, electrical, plumbing and all other systems shall be documented post-inspection and preinsulation, sheet rock or dry wall installation. This process shall include all finished systems located in the walls and ceilings of all buildings at the Project. Overlapping photographic techniques shall be used to insure maximum coverage. Indexing and navigation accomplished through interactive architectural drawings.
- 8. As-built conditions of exterior skin and elevations shall be documented with an increased concentration of digital photographs as directed by the COR in order to capture pre-determined focal points, such as waterproofing, window flashing, radiused steel work, architectural or Exterior Insulation and Finish Systems (EIFS) detailing. Overlapping photographic techniques shall be used to insure maximum coverage. Indexing and navigation accomplished through interactive elevations or elevation details.

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

- 9. As-built finished conditions of the interior of each building including floors, ceilings and walls shall be documented at certificate of occupancy or equivalent, or just prior to occupancy, or both, as directed by the COR. Overlapping photographic techniques shall be used to insure maximum coverage. Indexing and navigation accomplished through interactive architectural drawings.
- 10. Miscellaneous events that occur during any Contractor site visit, or events captured by the Department of Veterans Affairs independently, shall be dated, labeled and inserted into a Section in the navigation structure entitled "Slideshows," allowing this information to be stored in the same "place" as the formal scope.
- 11. Customizable project-specific digital photographic documentation of other details or milestones. Indexing and navigation accomplished through interactive architectural plans.
- 12. Monthly (29 max) exterior progressions (360 degrees around the project) and slideshows (all elevations and building envelope). The slideshows allow for the inclusion of Department of Veterans Affairs pictures, aerial photographs, and timely images which do not fit into any regular monthly photopath.
- 13. Weekly (21 Max) Site Progressions Photographic documentation capturing the project at different stages of construction. These progressions shall capture underground utilities, excavation, grading, backfill, landscaping and road construction throughout the duration of the project.
- 14. Regular (8 max) interior progressions of all walls of the entire project to begin at time of substantial framed or as directed by the COR through to completion.
- 15. Detailed Exact-Built of all Slabs for all project slab pours just prior to placing concrete or as directed by the COR.
- 16. Detailed Interior exact built overlapping photos of the entire building to include documentation of all mechanical, electrical and plumbing systems in every wall and ceiling, to be conducted after rough-ins are complete, just prior to insulation and or drywall, or as directed by COR.

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

- 17. Finished detailed Interior exact built overlapping photos of all walls, ceilings, and floors to be scheduled by COR prior to occupancy.
- 18. In event a greater or lesser number of images than specified above are required by the COR, adjustment in contract price will be made in accordance with clause entitled "CHANGES" (FAR 52.243-4 and VAAR 852.236-88).
- C. Images shall be taken by a commercial photographer and must show distinctly, at as large a scale as possible, all parts of work embraced in the picture.
- D. Coordination of photo shoots is accomplished through COR. Contractor shall also attend construction team meetings as necessary. Contractor's operations team shall provide regular updates regarding the status of the documentation, including photo shoots concluded, the availability of new Progressions or Exact-Builts viewable on-line and anticipated future shoot dates.
- E. Contractor shall provide all on-line domain/web hosting, security measures, and redundant server back-up of the documentation.
- F. Contractor shall provide technical support related to using the system or service.
- G. Upon completion of the project, final copies of the documentation (the "Permanent Record") with the indexing and navigation system embedded (and active) shall be provided in an electronic media format, typically a DVD or external hard-drive. Permanent Record shall have Building Information Modeling (BIM) interface capabilities. On-line access terminates upon delivery of the Permanent Record.

# 1.30 FINAL ELEVATION DIGITAL IMAGES

- A. A minimum of four (4) images of each elevation shall be taken with a minimum 6 MP camera, by a professional photographer with different settings to allow the COR to select the image to be printed. All images are provided to the COR on a CD.
- B. Photographs shall be taken upon completion, including landscaping. They shall be taken on a clear sunny day to obtain sufficient detail to show depth and to provide clear, sharp pictures. Pictures shall be 400 mm x

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

500 mm (16 by 20 inches), printed on regular weight paper, matte finish archival grade photographic paper and produced by a RA4 process from the digital image with a minimum 300 PPI. Identifying data shall be carried on label affixed to back of photograph without damage to photograph and shall be similar to that provided for final construction photographs.

C. Furnish six (6) 400 mm x 500 mm (16 by 20 inch) color prints of the following buildings constructed under this project (elevations as selected by the COR from the images taken above). Photographs shall be artistically composed showing full front elevations. All images shall become property of the Government. Each of the selected six prints shall be place in a frame with a minimum of 2 inches of appropriate matting as a border. Provide a selection of a minimum of 3 different frames from which the COR will select one style to frame all six prints. Photographs with frames shall be delivered to the COR in boxes suitable for shipping.

# 1.31 VA TRIRIGA CPMS

VA contractors, selected by award to perform work, are required to get access to the VA TRIRIGA CPMS. The TRIRIGA CPMS is the management and collaborative environment that the VA uses for all Major, Minor and Non-Recurring Maintenance (NRM) projects within the Office of Construction & Facilities Management (CFM). The contractor is solely responsible for acquiring access to the VA TRIRIGA CPMS.

To gain access to the VA TRIRIGA CPMS the contractor is encouraged to follow the licensing process outline as specified below:

- A. Requirement: TRIRIGA is the management and collaborative environment that VA uses for all construction projects. VA requires its contractors to procure TRIRIGA access as part of the cost of performance for a VA construction related contract.
- B. Access Request and Payment can be made through the following URL <u>https://valicensing.oncfi.com/</u> Inquiries or to request additional services, contact the following: Craig Alsheimer, Federal Account Manager

-

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

```
Computerized Facility Integrations, LLC
18000 West Nine Mile Road
Suite 700
Southfield, MI 48075
```

Email: calsheimer@gocfi.com

Phone: 248-557-4234 Extension 6010; 410-292-7006

- C. Process:
  - Once the contractor has been notified by VA of the award and a unique contract number, the contractor can enter a request for access to TRIRIGA at URL https://valicensing.oncfi.com/
  - 2. CFI will process the request for access and payment. CFI will create the USER ID and a password. Security provisions required to align the contractor to the Contract Number will be entered and an email will be generated and submitted to the requestor.
  - 3. CFI will also provide standard terms and conditions related to the transaction and use agreement.

- - - E N D - - -

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

#### PART 1 - GENERAL

#### 1.1 DESCRIPTION

A. Door hardware and related items necessary for complete installation and operation of doors.

# 1.2 RELATED WORK

- A. Caulking: Section 07 92 00 JOINT SEALANTS.
- B. Application of Hardware: Section 08 14 00, WOOD DOORS Section 08 11 13, HOLLOW METAL DOORS AND FRAMES, Section 08 41 13, ALUMINUM-FRAMED ENTRANCES AND STOREFRONTS, AUTOMATIC ENTRANCES // Section 08 71 13, AUTOMATIC DOOR OPERATORS,
- C. Finishes: Section 09 06 00, SCHEDULE FOR FINISHES.
- D. Painting: Section 09 91 00, PAINTING.
- E. Card Readers: Section 28 13 11, PHYSICAL ACCESS CONTROL SYSTEMS.
- F. Electrical: Division 26, ELECTRICAL.
- G. Fire Detection: Section 28 31 00, FIRE DETECTION AND ALARM.

# 1.3 GENERAL

- A. All hardware shall comply with UFAS, (Uniform Federal Accessible Standards) unless specified otherwise.
- B. Provide rated door hardware assemblies where required by most current version of the International Building Code (IBC).
- C. Hardware for Labeled Fire Doors and Exit Doors: Conform to requirements of NFPA 80 for labeled fire doors and to NFPA 101 for exit doors, as well as to other requirements specified. Provide hardware listed by UL, except where heavier materials, large size, or better grades are specified herein under paragraph HARDWARE SETS. In lieu of UL labeling and listing, test reports from a nationally recognized testing agency may be submitted showing that hardware has been tested in accordance with UL test methods and that it conforms to NFPA requirements.
- D. Hardware for application on metal and wood doors and frames shall be made to standard templates. Furnish templates to the fabricator of these items in sufficient time so as not to delay the construction.
- E. The following items shall be of the same manufacturer, except as otherwise specified:
  - 1. Surface applied overhead door closers.
  - 5. Floor closers.

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

# 1.4 WARRANTY

- A. Automatic door operators shall be subject to the terms of FAR Clause 52.246-21, except that the Warranty period shall be two years in lieu
  - of one year for all items except as noted below:
  - 1. Locks, latchsets, and panic hardware: 5 years.
  - 2. Door closers and continuous hinges: 10 years.

#### **1.5 MAINTENANCE MANUALS**

A. In accordance with Section 01 00 00, GENERAL REQUIREMENTS Article titled "INSTRUCTIONS", furnish maintenance manuals and instructions on all door hardware. Provide installation instructions with the submittal documentation.

# 1.6 SUBMITTALS

- A. Submittals shall be in accordance with Section 01 33 23, SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCT DATA AND SAMPLES. Submit 6 copies of the schedule per Section 01 33 23. Submit 2 final copies of the final approved schedules to VAMC Locksmith as record copies (VISN Locksmith if the VAMC does not have a locksmith).
- B. Hardware Schedule: Prepare and submit hardware schedule in the following form:

Hardware Item	Quantity	Size	Reference Publication Type No.	Finish	Mfr. Name and Catalog No.	Key Control Symbols	UL Mark (if fire rated and listed)	ANSI/BHMA Finish Designation

- C. Samples and Manufacturers' Literature:
  - Samples: All hardware items (proposed for the project) that have not been previously approved by Builders Hardware Manufacturers Association shall be submitted for approval. Tag and mark all items with manufacturer's name, catalog number and project number.
  - Samples are not required for hardware listed in the specifications by manufacturer's catalog number, if the contractor proposes to use the manufacturer's product specified.

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

D. Certificate of Compliance and Test Reports: Submit certificates that hardware conforms to the requirements specified herein. Certificates shall be accompanied by copies of reports as referenced. The testing shall have been conducted either in the manufacturer's plant and certified by an independent testing laboratory or conducted in an independent laboratory, within four years of submittal of reports for approval.

## 1.7 DELIVERY AND MARKING

A. Deliver items of hardware to job site in their original containers, complete with necessary appurtenances including screws, keys, and instructions. Tag one of each different item of hardware and deliver to Resident Engineer for reference purposes. Tag shall identify items by Project Specification number and manufacturer's catalog number. These items shall remain on file in Resident Engineer's office until all other similar items have been installed in project, at which time the Resident Engineer will deliver items on file to Contractor for installation in predetermined locations on the project.

#### **1.8 PREINSTALLATION MEETING**

- A. Convene a preinstallation meeting not less than 30 days before start of installation of door hardware. Require attendance of parties directly affecting work of this section, including Contractor and Installer, Architect, Project Engineer and VA Locksmith, Hardware Consultant, and Hardware Manufacturer's Representative. Review the following:
  - 1. Inspection of door hardware.
  - 2. Job and surface readiness.
  - 3. Coordination with other work.
  - 4. Protection of hardware surfaces.
  - 5. Substrate surface protection.
  - 6. Installation.
  - 7. Adjusting.
  - 8. Repair.
  - 9. Field quality control.
  - 10. Cleaning.

# 1.9 INSTRUCTIONS

A. Hardware Set Symbols on Drawings: Except for protective plates, door stops, mutes, thresholds and the like specified herein, hardware requirements for each door are indicated on drawings by symbols.

> Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

Symbols for hardware sets consist of letters (e.g., "HW") followed by a number. Each number designates a set of hardware items applicable to a door type.

B. Keying: Provide removable core cylinders that are removable only with a special key or tool without disassembly of knob or lockset. Cylinders shall be 7 pin type. Keying shall be furnished & installed by owner.

## 1.10 APPLICABLE PUBLICATIONS

- A. The publications listed below form a part of this specification to the extent referenced. The publications are referenced in the text by the basic designation only. In text, hardware items are referred to by series, types, etc., listed in such specifications and standards, except as otherwise specified.
- B. American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM): F883-04....Padlocks E2180-07.....Standard Test Method for Determining the Activity of Incorporated Antimicrobial Agent(s) In Polymeric or Hydrophobic Materials C. American National Standards Institute/Builders Hardware Manufacturers Association (ANSI/BHMA): A156.1-06.....Butts and Hinges A156.2-03.....Bored and Pre-assembled Locks and Latches A156.3-08..... Exit Devices, Coordinators, and Auto Flush Bolts A156.4-08.....Door Controls (Closers) A156.5-01.....Auxiliary Locks and Associated Products A156.6-05.....Architectural Door Trim A156.8-05.....Door Controls-Overhead Stops and Holders A156.12-05 .....Interconnected Locks and Latches A156.14-07 .....Sliding and Folding Door Hardware A156.15-06.....Release Devices-Closer Holder, Electromagnetic and Electromechanical A156.16-08.....Auxiliary Hardware A156.17-04 .....Self-Closing Hinges and Pivots A156.18-06..... Materials and Finishes A156.21-09.....Thresholds A156.22-05.....Door Gasketing and Edge Seal Systems

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

A156.23-04......Delayed Egress Locking Systems A156.24-03.....Delayed Egress Locking Devices A156.25-07 .....Electrified Locking Devices A156.26-06.....Continuous Hinges A156.29-07 .....Exit Locks and Alarms A156.30-03 .....High Security Cylinders A156.31-07 .....Electric Strikes and Frame Mounted Actuators A250.8-03.....Standard Steel Doors and Frames D. National Fire Protection Association (NFPA):

- 80-10.....Fire Doors and Fire Windows
- E. Underwriters Laboratories, Inc. (UL): Building Materials Directory (2008)

#### PART 2 - PRODUCTS

#### 2.1 BUTT HINGES

- A. ANSI A156.1. Provide only three-knuckle hinges, except five-knuckle where the required hinge type is not available in a three-knuckle version (e.g., some types of swing-clear hinges). The following types of butt hinges shall be used for the types of doors listed, except where otherwise specified:
  - Exterior Doors: Type A2112/A5112 for doors 900 mm (3 feet) wide or less and Type A2111/A5111 for doors over 900 mm (3 feet) wide. Hinges for exterior outswing doors shall have non-removable pins. Hinges for exterior fire-rated doors shall be of stainless steel material.
  - 2. Interior Doors: Type A8112/A5112 for doors 900 mm (3 feet) wide or less and Type A8111/A5111 for doors over 900 mm (3 feet) wide. Hinges for doors exposed to high humidity areas (shower rooms, toilet rooms, kitchens, janitor rooms, etc. shall be of stainless steel material.
- B. Provide quantity and size of hinges per door leaf as follows:
  - 1. Doors up to 1210 mm (4 feet) high: 2 hinges.
  - Doors 1210 mm (4 feet) to 2260 mm (7 feet 5 inches) high: 3 hinges minimum.
  - 3. Doors greater than 2260 mm (7 feet 5 inches) high: 4 hinges.

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

- 4. Doors up to 900 mm (3 feet) wide, standard weight: 114 mm x 114 mm (4-1/2 inches x 4-1/2 inches) hinges.
- 5. Doors over 900 mm (3 feet) to 1065 mm (3 feet 6 inches) wide, standard weight: 127 mm x 114 mm (5 inches x 4-1/2 inches).
- 6. Doors over 1065 mm (3 feet 6 inches) to 1210 mm (4 feet), heavy weight: 127 mm x 114 mm (5 inches x 4-1/2 inches).
- 7. Provide heavy-weight hinges where specified.
  - At doors weighing 330 kg (150 lbs.) or more, furnish 127 mm (5 inch) high hinges.
- C. See Articles "MISCELLANEOUS HARDWARE" and "HARDWARE SETS" for pivots and hinges other than butts specified above and continuous hinges specified below.

# 2.2 CONTINUOUS HINGES

A. ANSI/BHMA A156.26, Grade 1-600.

1. Listed under Category N in BHMA's "Certified Product Directory."

- B. General: Minimum 0.120-inch- (3.0-mm-) thick, hinge leaves with minimum overall width of 4 inches (102 mm); fabricated to full height of door and frame and to template screw locations; with components finished after milling and drilling are complete
- C. Continuous, Barrel-Type Hinges: Hinge with knuckles formed around a Teflon-coated 6.35mm (0.25-inch) minimum diameter pin that extends entire length of hinge.
  - 1. Base Metal for Exterior Hinges: Stainless steel.
  - 2. Base Metal for Interior Hinges: Stainless steel.
  - 3. Base Metal for Hinges for Fire-Rated Assemblies: Stainless steel.
  - 4. Provide with non-removable pin (hospital tip option) at lockable outswing doors.
  - Where required to clear adjacent casing, trim, and wall conditions and allow full door swing, provide wide throw hinges of minimum width required.
  - 6. Provide with manufacturer's cut-outs for separate mortised power transfers and/or mortised automatic door bottoms where they occur.
  - Where thru-wire power transfers are integral to the hinge, provide hinge with easily removable portion to allow easy access to wiring connections.
  - 8. Where models are specified that provide an integral wrap-around edge guard for the hinge edge of the door, provide manufacturer's

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

adjustable threaded stud and machine screw mechanism to allow the door to be adjusted within the wrap-around edge guard.

## 2.3 DOOR CLOSING DEVICES

A. Closing devices shall be products of one manufacturer for each type specified.

#### 2.4 OVERHEAD CLOSERS

- A. Conform to ANSI A156.4, Grade 1.
- B. Closers shall conform to the following:
  - The closer shall have minimum 50 percent adjustable closing force over minimum value for that closer and have adjustable hydraulic back check effective between 60 degrees and 85 degrees of door opening.
  - 2. Where specified, closer shall have hold-open feature.
  - 3. Size Requirements: Provide multi-size closers, sizes 1 through 6, except where multi-size closer is not available for the required application.
  - 4. Material of closer body shall be forged or cast.
  - 5. Arm and brackets for closers shall be steel, malleable iron or high strength ductile cast iron.
  - 6. Where closers are exposed to the exterior or are mounted in rooms that experience high humidity, provide closer body and arm assembly of stainless steel material.
  - 7. Closers shall have full size metal cover; plastic covers will not be accepted.
  - Closers shall have adjustable hydraulic back-check, separate valves for closing and latching speed, adjustable back-check positioning valve, and adjustable delayed action valve.
  - 9. Provide closers with any accessories required for the mounting application, including (but not limited to) drop plates, special soffit plates, spacers for heavy-duty parallel arm fifth screws, bull-nose or other regular arm brackets, longer or shorter arm assemblies, and special factory templating. Provide special arms, drop plates, and templating as needed to allow mounting at doors with overhead stops and/or holders.

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

- 10. Closer arms or backcheck valve shall not be used to stop the door from overswing, except in applications where a separate wall, floor, or overhead stop cannot be used.
- 11. Provide parallel arm closers with heavy duty rigid arm.
- 12. Where closers are to be installed on the push side of the door, provide parallel arm type except where conditions require use of top jamb arm.
- 13. Provide all surface closers with the same body attachment screw pattern for ease of replacement and maintenance.

14. All closers shall have a 1 1/2" (38mm) minimum piston diameter.

C. Approved Product: LCN 4040 HPA DKBZ or AL Hot#111534

# 2.6 DOOR STOPS

A. Conform to ANSI A156.16.

- B. Provide door stops wherever an opened door or any item of hardware thereon would strike a wall, column, equipment or other parts of building construction. For concrete, masonry or quarry tile construction, use lead expansion shields for mounting door stops.
- C. Where cylindrical locks with turn pieces or pushbuttons occur, equip wall bumpers Type L02251 (rubber pads having concave face) to receive turn piece or button.
- D. Provide floor stops (Type L02141 or L02161 in office areas; Type L02121 x 3 screws into floor elsewhere. Wall bumpers, where used, must be installed to impact the trim or the door within the leading half of its width. Floor stops, where used, must be installed within 4-inches of the wall face and impact the door within the leading half of its width.
- E. Where drywall partitions occur, use floor stops, Type L02141 or L02161 in office areas, Type L02121 elsewhere.
- F. Provide stop Type L02011, as applicable for exterior doors. At outswing doors where stop can be installed in concrete, provide stop mated to concrete anchor set in 76mm (3-inch) core-drilled hole and filled with quick-setting cement.
- G. Omit stops where floor mounted door holders are required and where automatic operated doors occur.

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

- H. Provide appropriate roller bumper for each set of doors (except where closet doors occur) where two doors would interfere with each other in swinging.
- Provide appropriate door mounted stop on doors in individual toilets where floor or wall mounted stops cannot be used.
- J. Provide overhead surface applied stop Type C02541, ANSI A156.8 on patient toilet doors in bedrooms where toilet door could come in contact with the bedroom door.
- K. Provide door stops on doors where combination closer magnetic holders are specified, except where wall stops cannot be used or where floor stops cannot be installed within 4-inches of the wall.
- L. Where the specified wall or floor stop cannot be used, provide concealed overhead stops (surface-mounted where concealed cannot be used).

# 2.7 OVERHEAD DOOR STOPS AND HOLDERS

A. Conform to ANSI Standard A156.8. Overhead holders shall be of sizes recommended by holder manufacturer for each width of door. Set overhead holders for 110 degree opening, unless limited by building construction or equipment. Provide Grade 1 overhead concealed slide type: stop-only at rated doors and security doors, hold-open type with exposed holdopen on/off control at all other doors requiring overhead door stops.

# 2.9 LOCKS AND LATCHES

A. Conform to ANSI A156.2. Locks and latches for doors 45 mm (1-3/4 inch) thick or over shall have beveled fronts. Lock cylinders shall have not less than seven pins. Cylinders for all locksets shall be removable core type. Cylinders shall be furnished with construction removable cores and construction master keys. Cylinder shall be removable by special key or tool. Construct all cores so that they will be interchangeable into the core housings of all mortise locks, rim locks, cylindrical locks, and any other type lock included in the Great Grand Master Key System. Disassembly of lever or lockset shall not be required to remove core from lockset. All locksets or latches on double doors with fire label shall have latch bolt with 19 mm (3/4 inch) throw, unless shorter throw allowed by the door manufacturer's fire label. Provide temporary keying device or construction core of allow

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

opening and closing during construction and prior to the installation of final cores.

- B. In addition to above requirements, locks and latches shall comply with following requirements:
  - 2. Cylindrical Lock and Latch Sets: levers shall meet ADA (Americans with Disabilities Act) requirements. Cylindrical locksets shall be series 4000 Grade I. All locks and latchsets shall be furnished with 122.55 mm (4-7/8-inch) curved lip strike and wrought box. At outswing pairs with overlapping astragals, provide flat lip strip with 21mm (7/8-inch) lip-to-center dimension. Provide lever design to match design selected by Architect or to match existing lever design. Where two turn pieces are specified for lock F76, turn piece on inside knob shall lock and unlock inside knob, and turn piece on outside knob shall unlock outside knob when inside knob is in the locked position. (This function is intended to allow emergency entry into these rooms without an emergency key or any special tool.)
  - 3. Auxiliary locks shall be as specified under hardware sets and conform to ANSI A156.5.
  - 5. Privacy locks in non-mental-health patient rooms shall have an inside thumbturn for privacy and an outside thumbturn for emergency entrance. Where indicated provide privacy indicator. Single occupancy patient privacy doors shall typically swing out; where such doors cannot swing out, provide center-pivoted doors with rescue hardware (see HW-2B).
- C. Dead-bolts with privacy indicator as indicated.
- D. Electrified Options: As indicated in hardware sets, provide electrified electric latch retraction, power supply and all connections to card reader and/or automatic door operator. Unless otherwise indicated, provide electrified lockset standard as fail secure.
- E. Approved Products: Best Products Cylindrical
  1. Best Privacy Varsity Series with Lever handle and ANSI:93 KOL
  15D-S3-626
  2. Best Entry Varsity Series with Lever handle and ANSI:93 K7AB
  15D-S3-626
  3. Best Storeroom Varsity Series with Lever handle and ANSI:93 K7D

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302 15D-S3-626
4. Best I/C Cores: 1C7K1-626-UNCOMBINATED CORE

## 2.11 ELECTROMAGNETIC LOCKS

- A. ANSI/BHMA A156.23; electrically powered, of strength and configuration indicated; with electromagnet attached to frame and armature plate attached to door. Listed under Category E in BHMA's "Certified Product Directory."
  - 1. Type: Full exterior or full interior, as required by application indicated.
  - 2. Strength Ranking: 1650 lbf.
  - 3. Inductive Kickback Peak Voltage: Not more than 53 V.
  - 4. Residual Magnetism: Not more than 4 lbf to separate door from magnet.
- B. Approved products: SDC EMLOCK MODEL 1511/1512 V FINISH 628

## 2.12 ELECTRIC STRIKES

- A. ANSI/ BHMA A156.31 Grade 1.
- B. General: Use fail-secure electric strikes at fire-rated doors.
- C. Approved products:

Strike: HES 5200 SERIES 12/24D HOT#138230

Faceplate: HES - FP:501-630 HOT# 105393 Strike: HES 1006 SERIES 12/24D HOT# 126030 Faceplate: HES - FP:KM-630 HOT# 105416

Faceplate: HES - FP:J-630 HOT# 105411

Strike: HES 9600 SERIES 12/24D

# 2.13 KEYS

A. All keys will be provided by owner.

# 2.15 ARMOR PLATES, KICK PLATES, MOP PLATES AND DOOR EDGING

- A. Conform to ANSI Standard A156.6.
- B. Provide protective plates and door edging as specified below:
  - 1. Kick plates, mop plates and armor plates of metal, Type J100 series.
  - 2. Provide kick plates and mop plates where specified. Kick plates shall be 254 mm (10 inches) or 305 mm (12 inches) high. Mop plates

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

05-05M

shall be 152 mm (6 inches) high. Both kick and mop plates shall be minimum 1.27 mm (0.050 inches) thick. Provide kick and mop plates beveled on all 4 edges (B4E). On push side of doors where jamb stop extends to floor, make kick plates 38 mm (1-1/2 inches) less than width of door, except pairs of metal doors which shall have plates 25 mm (1 inch) less than width of each door. Extend all other kick and mop plates to within 6 mm (1/4 inch) of each edge of doors. Kick and mop plates shall butt astragals. For jamb stop requirements, see specification sections pertaining to door frames.

- 3. Kick plates and/or mop plates are not required on following door sides:
  - a. Armor plate side of doors;
  - b. Exterior side of exterior doors;
  - c. Closet side of closet doors;
  - d. Both sides of aluminum entrance doors.
- 4. Armor plates for doors are listed under Article "Hardware Sets". Armor plates shall be thickness as noted in the hardware set, 875 mm (35 inches) high and 38 mm (1-1/2 inches) less than width of doors, except on pairs of metal doors. Provide armor plates beveled on all 4 edges (B4E). Plates on pairs of metal doors shall be 25 mm (1 inch) less than width of each door. Where top of intermediate rail of door is less than 875 mm (35 inches) from door bottom, extend armor plates to within 13 mm (1/2 inch) of top of intermediate rail. On doors equipped with panic devices, extend armor plates to within 13 mm (1/2 inch) of panic bolt push bar.
- 5. Where louver or grille occurs in lower portion of doors, substitute stretcher plate and kick plate in place of armor plate. Size of stretcher plate and kick plate shall be 254 mm (10 inches) high.
- 6. Provide stainless steel edge guards where so specified at wood doors. Provide mortised type instead of surface type except where door construction and/or ratings will not allow. Provide edge guards of bevel and thickness to match wood door. Provide edge quards with factory cut-outs for door hardware that must be installed through or extend through the edge guard. Provide fullheight edge guards except where door rating does not allow; in such cases, provide edge guards to height of bottom of typical lockset

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

armor front. Forward edge guards to wood door manufacturer for factory installation on doors.

# 2.16 EXIT DEVICES

- A. Conform to ANSI Standard A156.3. Exit devices shall be Grade 1; type and function are specified in hardware sets. Provide flush with finished floor strikes for vertical rod exit devices in interior of building. Trim shall have cast satin stainless steel lever handles of design similar to locksets, unless otherwise specified. Provide key cylinders for keyed operating trim and, where specified, cylinder dogging.
- B. Surface vertical rod panics shall only be provided less bottom rod; provide fire pins as required by exit device and door fire labels. Do not provide surface vertical rod panics at exterior doors.
- C. Concealed vertical rod panics shall be provided less bottom rod at interior doors, unless lockable or otherwise specified; provide fire pins as required by exit device and door fire labels. Where concealed vertical rod panics are specified at exterior doors, provide with both top and bottom rods.
- D. Where removable mullions are specified at pairs with rim panic devices, provide mullion with key-removable feature.
- E. At non-rated openings with panic hardware, provide panic hardware with key cylinder dogging feature.
- F. Exit devices for fire doors shall comply with Underwriters Laboratories, Inc., requirements for Fire Exit Hardware. Submit proof of compliance.

# 2.17 MAGNETIC HOLD OPENS

- A. Magnetic door holders shall meet or exceed ANSI A156.15 and be UL listed 228 for Door Closer and Holders, with or with-out integral smoke detectors. Holding force shall be 25 to 40 pounds and shall be fail-safe. Pushpin release that eliminated residual magnetism shall be standard. Provide magnetic hold opens with triple-voltage coil that can receive 12 VDC, 24 VDC, or 120 VAC; or coordinate required voltage with electrical.
  - Design & Quality Standard Manufacturer: a. Rixon

# 2.18 FLUSH BOLTS (AUTOMATIC)

A. Conform to ANSI A156.3. Dimension of flush bolts shall conform to ANSI A115. Bolts shall conform to Underwriters Laboratories, Inc.,

> Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

requirements for fire door hardware. Flush bolts shall automatically latch and unlatch. Furnish dustproof strikes conforming to ANSI A156.16 for bottom flushbolt. Face plates for dustproof strike shall be rectangular and not less than 38 mm by 90 mm (1-1/2 by 3-1/2 inches).

B. At interior doors, provide auto flush bolts less bottom bolt, unless otherwise specified, except at wood pairs with fire-rating greater than 20 minutes; provide fire pins as required by auto flush bolt and door fire labels.

## 2.19 DOOR PULLS WITH PLATES

- A. Conform to ANSI A156.6.
- B. Approved product: ROCKWOOD 4X16 FINISH 628 #105 x 706 HOT# 117052
- C. Vandal resistant where indicate.

# 2.20 PUSH PLATES

- A. Conform to ANSI A156.6.
- B. Approved product: ROCKWOOD 4X16 FINISH 628 #70C HOT# 117099

## 2.22 COORDINATORS

- A. Conform to ANSI A156.16. Coordinators, when specified for fire doors, shall comply with Underwriters Laboratories, Inc., requirements for fire door hardware. Coordinator may be omitted on exterior pairs of doors where either door will close independently regardless of the position of the other door. Coordinator may be omitted on interior pairs of non-labeled open where open back strike is used. Open back strike shall not be used on labeled doors. Paint coordinators to match door frames, unless coordinators are plated. Provide bar type coordinators, except where gravity coordinators are required at acoustic pairs. For bar type coordinators, provide filler bars for full width and, as required, brackets for push-side surface mounted closers, overhead stops, and vertical rod panic strikes.
- B. Approved product: ROCKWOOD 4X16 FINISH 628 #70C HOT# 117099

# 2.23 THRESHOLDS

A. Conform to ANSI A156.21, mill finish extruded aluminum, except as otherwise specified. In existing construction, thresholds shall be installed in a bed of sealant with 4-20 stainless steel machine screws and expansion shields. In new construction, embed aluminum anchors

> Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

coated with epoxy in concrete to secure thresholds. Furnish thresholds for the full width of the openings.

- B. For thresholds at elevators entrances see other sections of specifications.
- C. At exterior doors and any interior doors exposed to moisture, provide threshold with non-slip abrasive finish.
- D. Provide with miter returns where threshold extends more than 12 mm (0.5 inch) from fame face.

# 2.24 AUTOMATIC DOOR BOTTOM SEAL AND RUBBER GASKET FOR LIGHT PROOF OR SOUND CONTROL DOORS

A. Conform to ANSI A156.22. Provide mortise or under-door type, except where not practical. For mortise automatic door bottoms, provide type specific for door construction (wood or metal).

#### 2.25 WEATHERSTRIPS (FOR EXTERIOR DOORS)

A. Conform to ANSI A156.22. Air leakage shall not to exceed 0.50 CFM per foot of crack length (0.000774m<sup>3</sup>/s/m).

#### 2.26 MISCELLANEOUS HARDWARE

- A. Access Doors (including Sheet Metal, Screen and Woven Wire Mesh Types): Except for fire-rated doors and doors to Temperature Control Cabinets, equip each single or double metal access door with Lock Type E76213, conforming to ANSI A156.5. Key locks as directed. Ship lock prepaid to the door manufacturer. Hinges shall be provided by door manufacturer.
- B. Mutes: Conform to ANSI A156.16. Provide door mutes or door silencers Type L03011 or L03021, depending on frame material, of white or light gray color, on each steel or wood door frame, except at fire-rated frames, lead-lined frames and frames for sound-resistant, lightproof and electromagnetically shielded doors. Furnish 3 mutes for single doors and 2 mutes for each pair of doors, except double-acting doors. Provide 4 mutes or silencers for frames for each Dutch type door. Provide 2 mutes for each edge of sliding door which would contact door frame.
- C. Astragal: Double Doors: PEMKO 357C Double Door Astragal 84" long x 2" wide.
- D. Latch Guard Protector: 11" Dura LP211DU EZ#104185

# 2.27 ARCHITECTURAL SEALS

A. General: Thresholds, weatherstripping, and gasket seals to be of type and design as specified below or in the Hardware Sets. Provide continuous weatherstrip gasketing on exterior doors and provide smoke,

> Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

light, or sound gasketing on interior doors where indicated. At exterior applications provide non-corrosive fasteners and elsewhere where indicated.

- B. Smoke Labeled Gasketing: Assemblies complying with NFPA 105 that are listed and labeled by a testing and inspecting agency acceptable to authorities having jurisdiction, for smoke control ratings indicated, based on testing according to UL 1784.
  - 1. Provide smoke labeled perimeter gasketing at all smoke labeled openings.
- C. Fire Labeled Gasketing: Assemblies complying with NFPA 80 that are listed and labeled by a testing and inspecting agency acceptable to authorities having jurisdiction, for fire ratings indicated, based on testing according to UL-10C.
  - Provide intumescent seals as indicated to meet UL10C Standard for Positive Pressure Fire Tests of Door Assemblies, and UBC 7-2, Fire Tests of Door Assemblies.

# 2.28 ELECTRONIC COMPONENTS

- A. General: All electronic components shall be compatible with the connected hardware and each other..
- B. Power Supply: ALTRONIX SMP7PMP8 high Current Supply/Charger w/ 12VDC OR 24 VDC @ 6 amp, 8 fused outputs, gray enclosure.
- C. Request To Exit (REX): ROFU (BOSCH)DS160 REX DETECTOR HOT#125870
- D. Door Position Switch:
  1. GE SENTROL 1 INCH 1078
  2. GE SENTROL 3/4 INCH 1078-C
- E. Transformers: ALTRONIX, PLUG-IN TRANSFORMER 24 VAC/50 VA

# 2.30 FINISHES

- A. Exposed surfaces of hardware shall have ANSI A156.18, finishes as specified below. Finishes on all hinges, pivots, closers, thresholds, etc., shall be as specified below under "Miscellaneous Finishes." For field painting (final coat) of ferrous hardware, see Section 09 91 00, PAINTING.
- B. 626 or 630: All surfaces on exterior and interior of buildings, except where other finishes are specified.

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

- C. Miscellaneous Finishes:
  - 1. Hinges --exterior doors: 626 or 630.
  - 2. Hinges --interior doors: 652 or 630.
  - 3. Pivots: Match door trim.
  - 4. Door Closers: Factory applied paint finish. Dull or Satin Aluminum color.
  - 5. Thresholds: Mill finish aluminum.
  - 6. Cover plates for floor hinges and pivots: 630.
  - 7. Other primed steel hardware: 600.
- D. Hardware Finishes for Existing Buildings: U.S. Standard finishes shall match finishes of hardware in (similar) existing spaces except where otherwise specified.
- E. Special Finish: Exposed surfaces of hardware for dark bronze anodized aluminum doors shall have oxidized oil rubbed bronze finish (dark bronze) finish on door closers shall closely match doors.

## 2.31 BASE METALS

A. Apply specified U.S. Standard finishes on different base metals as following:

Finish	Base Metal		
652	Steel		
626	Brass or bronze		
630	Stainless steel		

## PART 3 - EXECUTION

# 3.1 HARDWARE HEIGHTS

- A. For existing buildings locate hardware on doors at heights to match existing hardware. The Contractor shall visit the site, verify location of existing hardware and submit locations to VA Resident Engineer for approval.
- A. For new buildings locate hardware on doors at heights specified below, with all hand-operated hardware centered within 864 mm (34 inches) to 1200 mm (48 inches), unless otherwise noted:
  - B. Hardware Heights from Finished Floor:
    - 1. Exit devices centerline of strike (where applicable) 1024 mm (40-5/16 inches).

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

- Locksets and latch sets centerline of strike 1024 mm (40-5/16 inches).
- 3. Deadlocks centerline of strike 1219 mm (48 inches).
- Hospital arm pull 1168 mm (46 inches) to centerline of bottom supporting bracket.
- 5. Centerline of door pulls to be 1016 mm (40 inches).
- 6. Push plates and push-pull shall be 1270 mm (50 inches) to top of plate.
- Push-pull latch to be 1024 mm (40-5/16 inches) to centerline of strike.
- 8. Locate other hardware at standard commercial heights. Locate push and pull plates to prevent conflict with other hardware.

# 3.2 INSTALLATION

A. Closer devices, including those with hold-open features, shall be equipped and mounted to provide maximum door opening permitted by building construction or equipment. Closers shall be mounted on side of door inside rooms, inside stairs, and away from corridors // except security bedroom, bathroom and anteroom doors which shall have closer installed parallel arm on exterior side of doors. //. At exterior doors, closers shall be mounted on interior side. Where closers are mounted on doors they shall be mounted with sex nuts and bolts; foot shall be fastened to frame with machine screws.

Door Thickness	Door Width	Hinge Height		
45 mm (1-3/4 inch)	900 mm (3 feet) and less	113 mm (4-1/2 inches)		
45 mm (1-3/4 inch)	Over 900 mm (3 feet) but not more than 1200 mm (4 feet)	125 mm (5 inches)		
35 mm (1-3/8 inch) (hollow core wood doors)	Not over 1200 mm (4 feet)	113 mm (4-1/2 inches)		

B. Hinge Size Requirements:

- C. Hinge leaves shall be sufficiently wide to allow doors to swing clear of door frame trim and surrounding conditions.
- D. Where new hinges are specified for new doors in existing frames or existing doors in new frames, sizes of new hinges shall match sizes of

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302 existing hinges; or, contractor may reuse existing hinges provided hinges are restored to satisfactory operating condition as approved by Resident Engineer. Existing hinges shall not be reused on door openings having new doors and new frames. Coordinate preparation for hinge cut-outs and screw-hole locations on doors and frames.

E. Hinges Required Per Door:

Doors 1500 mm (5 ft) or less in height	2 butts
Doors over 1500 mm (5 ft) high and not over 2280 mm (7 ft 6 in) high	3 butts
Doors over 2280 mm (7 feet 6 inches) high	4 butts
Dutch type doors	4 butts
Doors with spring hinges 1370 mm (4 feet 6 inches) high 2 butts or less	
Doors with spring hinges over 1370 mm (4 feet 6 inches)	3 butts

- F. Fastenings: Suitable size and type and shall harmonize with hardware as to material and finish. Provide machine screws and lead expansion shields to secure hardware to concrete, ceramic or quarry floor tile, or solid masonry. Fiber or rawl plugs and adhesives are not permitted. All fastenings exposed to weather shall be of nonferrous metal.
- G. After locks have been installed; show in presence of Resident Engineer that keys operate their respective locks in accordance with keying requirements. (All keys, Master Key level and above shall be sent Registered Mail to the Medical Center Director along with the bitting list. Also a copy of the invoice shall be sent to the Resident Engineer for his records.) Installation of locks which do not meet specified keying requirements shall be considered sufficient justification for rejection and replacement of all locks installed on project.

#### 3.3 FINAL INSPECTION

- A. Installer to provide letter to VA Resident/Project Engineer that upon completion, installer has visited the Project and has accomplished the following:
  - 1. Re-adjust hardware.
  - Evaluate maintenance procedures and recommend changes or additions, and instruct VA personnel.
  - 3. Identify items that have deteriorated or failed.
  - 4. Submit written report identifying problems.

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

A. Demonstrate efficacy of mechanical hardware and electrical, and electronic hardware systems, including adjustment and maintenance procedures, to satisfaction of Resident/Project Engineer and VA Locksmith.

#### 3.5 HARDWARE SETS

- A. Following sets of hardware correspond to hardware symbols shown on drawings. Only those hardware sets that are shown on drawings will be required. Disregard hardware sets listed in specifications but not shown on drawings.
- B. Hardware Consultant working on a project will be responsible for providing additional information regarding these hardware sets. The numbers shown in the following sets come from BHMA standards.

C. ALL LOCKSETS TO BE CYLINDRICAL TYPE WITH CLUTCH LEVER

ELECT	[R]	IC HARDWARE ABBREVIATIONS LEGEND:
ADO	=	Automatic Door Operator
EMCH	=	Electro-Mechanical Closer-Holder
MHO	=	Magnetic Hold-Open (wall- or floor-mounted)

### INTERIOR SINGLE DOORS

HW-1B

Ea	ch Door to Have:	RATED
1	Continuous Hinge	X INTEGRAL HINGE GUARD CHANNELQUANTITY
		X SWING-CLEAR X ADJUSTA=SCREWS
1	Door Pull w/ Plate	J401 x J302
1	Push Plate	J302
1	Closer	C02011/C02021
		x INSTALL OUTSIDE ROOM
1	Armor Plate	J102 x 1.275 mm (0.050 inch) THICKNESS
1	Mop Plate (@ Inswing Doors)	J103
1	Overhead Stop	c011541- ADJUSTABLE
1	Set Seals	R0Y164

## STONE THRESHOLD BY OTHER TRADES.

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

NON-RATED

NON-RATED

HW-1F

## Each Door to Have:

Each Door to Have:

1	Continuous Hinge	
1	Latchset	F04
1	Kick Plate	J102
1	Wall Stop	L02101 CONVEX
3	Silencers	L03011

		HW-1G
Ea	ch Door to Have:	NON-RATED
1	Continuous Hinge	
1	Storeroom Lock	F07
1	Wall Stop	L02101 CONVEX
3	Silencers	L03011

HW-1L

1	Continuous Hinge	
1	Latchset	F04
1	Kick Plate	J102
1	Wall Stop	L02101 CONVEX
1	Threshold	J32300 x 57 MM WIDTH (2-1/4 INCHES)
1	Auto Door Bottom	R0Y346 - HEAVY DUTY
2	Sets Self-Adhesive Seals	R0Y154
1	Electric Unlatch Strike	E09321
1	Power Supply	REGULATED, FILTERED, 24VDC, AMPERAGE
		AS REQUIRED
1	Request To Exit	

1 Door Position Switch

CARD READER BY DIVISION 28

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

HW-1Q

Eac	ch Door to Have:	RATED/NON-RATED
1	Continuous Hinge	
1	Latchset	F04
1	Kick Plate	J102
1	Closer (@ rated doors)	C02011/C02021
1	Wall Stop	L02101 CONVEX
1	Threshold	J32300 x 57 MM WIDTH (2-1/4 INCHES)
1	Auto Door Bottom	R0Y346 - HEAVY DUTY
2	Sets Self-Adhesive Seals	R0Y154
1	Electric Unlatch Strike	E09321
1	Power Supply	REGULATED, FILTERED, 24VDC, AMPERAGE
		AS REQUIRED
2	Request To Exit	
2	Door Position Switch	
CAR	RD READER BY DIVISION 28	

HW-2

Each Door to Have:		RATED/NON-RATED
	Hinges	QUANTITY & TYPE AS REQUIRED
1	Keyed Privacy Indicator Lock	F13 x OCCUPANCY INDICATOR
1	Closer	C02011/C02021
1	Kick Plate	J102
1	Mop Plate (@ Inswing Doors)	J103
1	Floor Stop	L02121 x 3 FASTENERS
1	Set Self-Adhesive Seals	R0Y154
ST	ONE THRESHOLD BY OTHER TRADES.	

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

HW-2G

Ea	ch Door to Have:	RA	ATED/NON-RATED
	Hinges	QUANTITY & TYPE AS REQUIRE	3D
1	Latchset	F04	
1	Dead-bolt w/ Indicator	x OCCUPANCY INDICATOR	
1	Closer	C02011/C02021	
1	Kick Plate	J102	
1	Mop Plate (@ Inswing Doors)	J103	
1	Floor Stop	L02121 x 3 FASTENERS	
1	Auto Door Bottom	R0Y346 - HEAVY DUTY	
2	Set Self-Adhesive Seals	R0Y154	
SI	ONE THRESHOLD BY OTHER TRADES.		

HW-3E

Each Door to Have: NON-RATED Hinges QUANTITY & TYPE AS REQUIRED 1 Storeroom Lock F07 1 Closer C02011/C02021 1 Floor Stop L02121 x 3 FASTENERS 1 Set Self-Adhesive Seals R0Y154 1 Coat Hook L03121 1 Electric Unlatch Strike E09321 1 Power Supply REGULATED, FILTERED, 24VDC, AMPERAGE AS REQUIRED  $\sim$ 1 Request To Exit 1 Door Position Switch 1 Threshold J32300 x 57 MM WIDTH (2-1/4 INCHES) R0Y346 - HEAVY DUTY 1 Auto Door Bottom

PREPED FOR FUTURE CARD READER

mm

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

## HW-4E

Ea	ch Door to Have:	NON-RATED/RATED
	Hinges	QUANTITY & TYPE AS REQUIRED
1	Storeroom Lock	F07
1	Closer	C02011/C02021
1	Kick Plate	J102
1	Floor Stop	L02121 x 3 FASTENERS
1	Threshold	J32300 x 57 MM WIDTH (2-1/4 INCHES)
1	Auto Door Bottom	R0Y346 - HEAVY DUTY
1	Set Self-Adhesive Seals	R0Y154
1	Coat Hook	L03121
1	Electric Unlatch Strike	E09321
1	Power Supply	REGULATED, FILTERED, 24VDC, AMPERAGE
$\sim$	<b>C</b>	AS REQUIRED
1	Request To Exit	
1	Door Position Switch	

CARD READER BY DIVISION 28

HW-5

Ea	ch Door to Have:	NON-RATED
	Hinges	QUANTITY & TYPE AS REQUIRED
1	Storeroom Lock	F07
1	Kick Plate	J102 (@ STORAGE, EVM, & HAC ROOMS ONLY)
1	Closer (@ rated doors)	C02011/C02021
1	Wall Stop (@ Outswing Doors)	L02101 CONVEX
2	Sets Self-Adhesive Seals	R0Y154
1	Electric Unlatch Strike	E09321
1	Power Supply	REGULATED, FILTERED, 24VDC, AMPERAGE
		AS REQUIRED
1	Request To Exit	

1 Door Position Switch CARD READER BY DIVISION 28

> Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

HW-5D

Each Door to Have: NON-RATED		
	Hinges	QUANTITY & TYPE AS REQUIRED
1	Storeroom Lock	F07
1	Kick Plate	J102 (@ STORAGE, EVM, & HAC ROOMS ONLY)
1	Floor Stop (@ Inswing Doors)	L02121 x 3 FASTENERS
1	Wall Stop (@ Outswing Doors)	L02101 CONVEX
3	Silencers	L03011
1	Electric Unlatch Strike	E09321

<u>HW-5H</u>

Each Door to Have: RATED		
	Hinges	QUANTITY & TYPE AS REQUIRED
1	Storeroom Lock	F07
1	Kick Plate	J102
1	Floor Stop	L02121 x 3 FASTENERS @ Bottom Leaf
1	Wall Stop	L02101 @ Bottom Leaf
1	Set Self-Adhesive Seals	R0Y154
1	Electric Unlatch Strike	E09321
1	Power Supply	REGULATED, FILTERED, 24VDC, AMPERAGE
		AS REQUIRED
1	Request To Exit	

1 Door Position Switch

1 CARD READER BY DIVISION 28

<u>HW-6</u>

Εa	ach Door to Have:	RATED
	Hinges	QUANTITY & TYPE AS REQUIRED
1	Exit Device	TYPE 1 F13 LEVER
1	Latchet	F04
1	Closer	C02011/C02021
1	Wall Stop	L02121 Convex
1	Set Self-Adhesive Seals	R0Y154

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

	HW-6A
Each Door to Have:	RATED
1 Continuous Hinge	x INTEGRAL HINGE GUARD CHANNEL
	X HOSPITAL TIP X ADJUSTA-SCREWS
1 Storeroom Lock	F07
1 Exit Device	TYPE 1 F08 LEVER
1 Key Cylinder	TYPE AS REQUIRED
1 Closer	C02011/C02021
1 Kick Plate	J102
1 Edge Guard (@ Wood Doors)	J208M / J211 (VERIFY), CUT: HARDWARE
1 Floor Stop	L02121 x 3 FASTENERS
1 Set Self-Adhesive Seals	R0Y154/R0Y155
1 Electric Unlatch Strike	E09321
1 Power Supply	REGULATED, FILTERED, 24VDC, AMPERAGE
	AS REQUIRED
1 Request To Exit	
1 Door Position Switch	
CARD READER BY DIVISION 28	
	HW-6B
Each [MHO] Door to Have:	RATED
1 Continuous Hinge	x INTEGRAL HINGE GUARD CHANNEL
	X ADJUSTA-SCREWS
1 Exit Device	TYPE 1 F08 LEVER
1 Latchset	F'0 4
1 Closer	C02011/C02021
1 Kick Plate	J102
1 Set Self-Adhesive Seals	R0Y154
1 Electric Unlatch Strike	E09321

CARD READER BY DIVISION 28

1 Power Supply

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

AS REQUIRED

REGULATED, FILTERED, 24VDC, AMPERAGE

## HW-6F

Each [ADO] Door to Have: NON-RATED/RATED		
1 Continuous Hinge	x INTEGRAL HINGE GUARD CHANNEL	
	X ADJUSTA-SCREWS x 8-THRUWIRE	
	TRANSFER X IN-HINGE ACCESS PANELS	
1 Elec. Exit Device	TYPE 1 F08 LEVER (E04)	
1 Key Cylinder	TYPE AS REQUIRED	
1 Closer	C02011/C02021	
1 Power Supply	BY EXIT DEVICE MFR. FOR E04 FUNCTION	
1 Armor Plate	J101 x 1.275 MM (0.050 INCH) THICKNESS	
1 Edge Guard (@ Wood Doors)	J208M / J211 (VERIFY), CUT: HARDWARE	
1 Floor Stop	L02121 x 3 FASTENERS	
1 Set Self-Adhesive Seals	R0Y154	
1 Electric Unlatch Strike	E09321	
1 Power Supply	REGULATED, FILTERED, 24VDC, AMPERAGE	
	AS REQUIRED	
2 Magnetic Holder	C00011 TRI-VOLTAGE	
POWER, WIRING, CONDUIT, AND FIRE	ALARM CONNECTION BY DIVISION 26.	
CARD READER BY DIVISION 28		
POWER TRANSFER SHARED BY ELECTRI	C PANIC AND RE-ACTIVATION SENSOR WIRING	

(RE-ACTIVATION SENSORS PROVIDED BY SECTION 08 71 13).

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

## HW-10A

Each Pair to Have: NON-RATED			
2	Continuous Hinges	x INTEGRAL HINGE GUARD CHANNEL	
		X ADJUSTA-SCREWS	
2	Door Pull w/ Plate	J401 x J302	
2	Push Plate	J302	
2	Closers (@ rated doors)	C02011/C02021	
2	Heavy-Duty Armor Plates	J101 x 3.175 MM (0.125 INCH) THICKNESS	
2	Edge Guard (@ Wood Doors)	J208M / J211 (VERIFY), CUT: HARDWARE	
		<u>HW-10B</u>	
Each Pair to Have: NON-RATED/RATED			
2	Continuous Hinges	x INTEGRAL HINGE GUARD CHANNEL	
		X ADJUSTA-SCREWS	
2	Sets Auto Flush Bolts	TYPE 25 LESS BOTTOM BOLT	
1	Overlapping Astragal with	R0Y634 x R0Y154 x THRU-BOLTS	
	Self-Adhesive Seal		
2	Magnetic Lock		
2	Closers (@ rated doors)	C02011/C02021	
2	Heavy-Duty Armor Plates	J101 x 3.175 MM (0.125 INCH) THICKNESS	

2	Edge Guard	(@ Wood Doors)	J208M / J211	(VERIFY), CU	UT: HARDWARE

2 Exit Device
 2 Magnetic Holder

Type 7 or 8 FOI C00011 TRI-VOLTAGE

POWER, WIRING, CONDUIT, AND FIRE ALARM CONNECTION BY DIVISION 26.

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

### HW-11

Each Pair to Have:	RATED/NR		
Hinges	QUANTITY & TYPE AS REQUIRED		
1 Set Auto Flush Bolts	TYPE 25 LESS BOTTOM BOLT		
1 Electrified Lock	F07 (E01 - REX, E06) 24 VAC		
1 Coordinator	TYPE 21A		
1 Overlapping Astragal with	R0Y634 x R0Y154 x THRU-BOLTS		
Self-Adhesive Seal			
2 Closers	C02011/C02021		
2 Kick Plates	J102 (@ STORAGE ROOMS ONLY)		
2 Floor Stops	L02121 x 3 FASTENERS		
2 Set Self-Adhesive Seals	R0Y154		
1 Electric Unlatch Strike	E09321 (FAIL SECURE)		
1 Power Supply	REGULATED, FILTERED, 24VDC, AMPERAGE		
	AS REQUIRED		
CARD READER BY DIVISION 28			

## HW-11D

Ea	ch Pair to Have:	RATED/NR		
	Hinges	QUANTITY & TYPE AS REQUIRED		
1	Set Auto Flush Bolts	TYPE 25 LESS BOTTOM BOLT		
1	Electrified Lock	F07 (E01 - REX, E06) 24 VAC		
1	Coordinator	TYPE 21A		
1	Overlapping Astragal with	R0Y634 x R0Y154 x THRU-BOLTS		
	Self-Adhesive Seal			
2	Closers	C02011/C02021		
2	Kick Plates	J102 (@ STORAGE ROOMS ONLY)		
2	Floor Stops	L02121 x 3 FASTENERS		
2	Set Self-Adhesive Seals	R0Y154		
1	Power Supply	REGULATED, FILTERED, 24VDC, AMPERAGE		
		AS REQUIRED		
1	PUSH BUTTON (OVER-RIDE)			

2 CARD READER BY DIVISION 281 AUTOMATIC DOOR OPERATOR RELOCATE EXISTING SALVAGED UNIT

120 VAC POWER, CONDUIT AND WIRING BY DIVISION 26

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

<u>HW-E3</u>				
Ea	ch Door to Have:	NON-RATED		
1	Continuous Hinge	x INTEGRAL HINGE GUARD CHANNEL		
		X ADJUSTA-SCREWS		
1	Anti-Vandal Pull			
1	Exit Device	TYPE 1 F03 LESS TRIM		
1	Latch Protector			
	(outswing dr.)			
1	Key Cylinder	TYPE AS REQUIRED		
1	Closer	C02011/C02021		
1	Armor Plate	J101 x 3.125 MM (0.125 INCH) THICKNESS		
1	Floor Stop	L02121 x 3 FASTNERS		
1	Overhead Holder	C01511-ADJUSTABLE		
1	Threshold (outswing door)	J32120 x SILICONE GASKET		
1	Door Sweep	R0Y416		
1	Set Frame Seals	R0Y164		
1	Drip	R0Y976		

HW-E4

Ea	ch Door to Have:		NON-RATED
1	Continuous Hinge		
1	Anti-Vandal Pull		
1	Exit Device	TYPE 1 F03 LESS TRIM	
1	Latch Protector		
	(outswing dr.)		
1	Key Cylinder	TYPE AS REQUIRED	
1	Closer	C02011	
1	Kick Plate	J102	
1	Floor Stop	L02121 x 3 FASTNERS	
1	Threshold	J32120 x SILICONE GASKE	ΣT
1	Door Sweep	R0Y416	
1	Set Frame Seals	R0Y164	
1	Drip	R0Y976	

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

## HW-E5

Ea	ch Pair to Have:	NON-RATED
2	Continuous Hinge	
2	Set Auto Flush Bolts	TYPE 25
2	Exit Device	TYPE 1 F03 LESS TRIM
1	Coordinator	TYPE 21A
2	Closer	C02011/C02021
2	Armor Plate	J101 x 3.125 MM (0.125 INCH) THICKNESS
2	Floor Stop	L02121 x 3 FASTNERS
2	Threshold (outswing door)	J32120 x SILICONE GASKET
2	Door Sweep	R0Y416
2	Set Frame Seals	R0Y164
2	Drip	R0Y976

HW-E8

Each Pair to Have: NON-RATED 2 Continuous Hinge 1 Set Auto Flush Bolts TYPE 25 1 Dust Proof Strike L04021 1 Storeroom Lock F13-MOD x RIGID OUTSIDE LEVER x KEY RETRACTS DEADBOLT AND LATCHBOLT 1 Overlapping Astragal with R0Y634 x R0Y154 x THRU-BOLTS Self-Adhesive Seal 1 Coordinator TYPE 21A 2 Closer C02011/C02021 2 Armor Plate J101 x 3.125 MM (0.125 INCH) THICKNESS 2 Floor Stop L02121 x 3 FASTNERS 1 Threshold (outswing door) J32120 x SILICONE GASKET 1 Threshold (inswing door) ALUMINUM, PER ARCHITECTURAL DETAIL 2 Door Sweep R0Y416 1 Set Frame Seals R0Y164 1 Drip R0Y976

> Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

<u>HW-E9</u> <u>Each Pair to Have:</u> 1 Power Supply REGULATED, FILTERED, 24VDC, AMPERAGE AS REQUIRED 1 Request To Exit 1 Door Position Switch CARD READER BY DIVISION 28 BALANCE OF HARDWARE BY DOOR MFG

- - - E N D - - -

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302



# MEP Addendum #1

## P

Project:	Construction Rrehab/Prosthetics & Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition	From:	Will Felt
Project No:	<b>(B.01)</b> 20130460	Date:	Feb 24, 2016

DISCIPLINES Mechanical Engineering **Electrical Engineering** Technology Design Acoustical Engineering Lighting Design Theatre Design Fire Protection Engineering **Building Commissioning** 

## CENTERS OF

ENGINEERING EXCELLENCE Healthcare Higher Education K-12 Education Government Houses of Worship Special Projects

## SALT LAKE CITY 324 S. State Street Suite 400 Salt Lake City, UT 84111 phone: 801-328-5151 fax: 801-328-5155

## PHOENIX

1501 W. Fountainhead Parkway Suite 340 Tempe, AZ 85282 phone: 480-621-3444 fax: 480-621-3445

www.spectrum-engineers.com 800-678-7077

## DRAWINGS

## **EP601**

1. Change transformer TR2 to 480-208/120V.

Changed sheet Keynote 1 to read "REFEED TRANSFORMER "1-1-F-N-TR1" 2. WITH NEW FEED FROM NEW MAIN DISTRIBUTION PANEL. REMOVE CONDUCTORS BACK TO SWITCHGEAR "42-1-A-N-D1".

Added Sheet Keynote 7 to read "Provide two sets of lugs on load side of rotary 3. selector switch, one going to transformer and one going to future ER addition."

- Added Sheet Keynote 6 to read "Medium Voltage Transformer spec 26 12 19, 4. clarifications as follows
  - Indoor close coupled substation type, in lieu of Pad Mounted 2.1
  - FR3 fluid in lieu of mineral oil for insulating medium due to indoor rating 2.9C
  - Delete bayonet fuses 2.4
  - Primary flange with spades for coupling to fused switch 2.7

- Primary full-height air terminal chamber with deadfront universal bushings wells if cabling from primary fused switch, to transformer 2.7

- Delete 4 position switch. 2.6
- 5.75% impedance, ANSI standard 2.9D
- No fault indicators required 2.10
- Low voltage 6 hole spades in lieu of Secondary main molded case CB 2.8
- Containment Pan for indoor use for100% fluid containment"

Add general sheet keynote to read "Minimally, transformers shall conform to 5. efficiency levels for liquid immersed distribution transformers, as specified in Table I.5 of the Department of Energy ruling 10 CFR Part 431 - Energy Conservation Program: Energy Conservation Standards for Distribution Transformers, effective January 1,

2016. Manufacturer shall comply with the intent of all regulations set forth in noted ruling. This efficiency standard does not apply to step-up transformers."

## **EP101**

1. Added three data and power receptacles in lobby for Kiosk.

## **EP103 and EP104**

1. Added conduit runs from FIRST FLOOR ELECTRICAL ROOM TO CEILING SPACE OF FIRST FLOOR THERAPY / REHAB 137.



2. Added conduit runs from AUXILIARY ROOM 2F38A TO CEILING SPACE OF FIRST FLOOR THERAPY / REHAB 137.

## EP109

1. Added sheet keynote 1 to read "PROVIDE 2 EACH 1.5" CONDUITS AND 1 EACH 1" CONDUIT STUBBED FROM MECHANICAL FARM ON ROOF TO PLENUM SPACE IN LEVEL 1 IN OLD F-WING. ROUTE CONDUIT THROUGH PLENUM SPACE OF LEVEL 2 PROSTHETICS/REHAB ADDITION."

## **ES101**

1. Changed sheet keynote 7 to read "PROVIDE 6 EACH 4" SCHEDULE 80 PVC CONDUITS FROM NEW SWITCHGEAR STUBBED OUT AND CAPPED 3-FEET FROM BUILDING AS ILLUSTRATED FOR FUTURE EXTENSION TO THE ER WING. CONDUIT IS TO BE UNDER SLAB. MARK EXACT LOCATION ON AS BUILTS FOR FUTURE TAP LOCATION AND MARK WITH PHYSICAL STAKE AT THE STUB LOCATION."

## **MH101**

1. FCU-23a return duct connection coordinated.

## **MH103**

1. Return duct connection coordinated for FCU-1,3,4,8,9,10,11,17,18,21,28,29.

## **MH104**

1. Return duct connection coordinated for FCU-5,14a,14b.

## **PE101**

1. Sheet keynote tags removed. All keynotes and keynote tags are shown on PJ and PL sheets.

## PL101

1. Sheet keynote 15 added. It reads, "EXISTING 4" WASTE DOWN TO LEVEL BELOW."

## PL103

1. Sheet keynote 1 updated to read, "PRIMARY ROOF DRAIN PIPING DOWN TO LEVEL 1. SEE CONTINUATION ON SHEET PL101."

2. Sheet keynote 2 updated to read, "SECONDARY ROOF DRAIN PIPING DOWN TO LEVEL 1. SEE CONTINUATION ON SHEET PL101."

## PL104

1. Sheet keynote updated to read, "ROUTE ROOF DRAIN PIPING DOWN COLUMN AND BELOW GRADE. SEE CONTINUATION ON SHEET PL102."

DISCIPLINES Mechanical Engineering Electrical Engineering Technology Design Acoustical Engineering Lighting Design Theatre Design Fire Protection Engineering Building Commissioning

### CENTERS OF

ENGINEERING EXCELLENCE Healthcare Higher Education K-12 Education Government Houses of Worship Special Projects

> SALT LAKE CITY 324 S. State Street Suite 400 Salt Lake City, UT 84111 phone: 801-328-5151 fax: 801-328-5155

> > PHOENIX

1501 W. Fountainhead Parkway Suite 340 Tempe, AZ 85282 phone: 480-621-3444 fax: 480-621-3445

www.spectrum-engineers.com 800-678-7077



## End of Addendum #1

DISCIPLINES

Mechanical Engineering Electrical Engineering Technology Design Acoustical Engineering Lighting Design Theatre Design Fire Protection Engineering Building Commissioning

### CENTERS OF

ENGINEERING EXCELLENCE Healthcare Higher Education K-12 Education Government Houses of Worship Special Projects

> SALT LAKE CITY 324 S. State Street Suite 400 Salt Lake City, UT 84111 phone: 801-328-5151 fax: 801-328-5155

## PHOENIX

1501 W. Fountainhead Parkway Suite 340 Tempe, AZ 85282 phone: 480-621-3444 fax: 480-621-3445

www.spectrum-engineers.com 800-678-7077

### SECTION 22 11 00 FACILITY WATER DISTRIBUTION

#### PART 1 - GENERAL

#### 1.1 DESCRIPTION

- A. Domestic water systems, including piping, equipment and all necessary accessories as designated in this section.
- B. A complete listing of all acronyms and abbreviations are included in Section 22 05 11, COMMON WORK RESULTS FOR PLUMBING.

#### 1.2 RELATED WORK

- A. Section 01 00 00, GENERAL REQUIREMENTS.
- B. Section 01 33 23, SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCT DATA, AND SAMPLES.
- C. Section 01 81 13, SUSTAINABLE CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS.
- D. Section 01 91 00, GENERAL COMMISSIONING REQUIREMENTS.//
- E. Section 07 84 00, FIRESTOPPING.
- F. Section 07 92 00, JOINT SEALANTS.
- G. Section 09 91 00, PAINTING.
- H. Section 13 05 41, SEISMIC RESTRAINT REQUIREMENTS FOR NON-STRUCTURAL COMPONENTS: Seismic Restraint.
- I. Section 22 05 11, COMMON WORK RESULTS FOR PLUMBING.
- J. Section 22 07 11, PLUMBING INSULATION.
- K. SECTION 22 08 00, COMMISSIONING OF PLUMBING SYSTEMS.//

#### **1.3 APPLICABLE PUBLICATIONS**

- A. The publications listed below form a part of this specification to the extent referenced. The publications are referenced in the text by the basic designation only.
- B. American Society of Mechanical Engineers (ASME):

A13.1-2007 (R2013).....Scheme for Identification of Piping Systems B16.3-2011.....Malleable Iron Threaded Fittings: Classes 150 and 300

B16.9-2012.....Factory-Made Wrought Buttwelding Fittings B16.11-2011.....Forged Fittings, Socket-Welding and Threaded B16.12-2009 (R2014)....Cast Iron Threaded Drainage Fittings B16.15-2013 .....Cast Copper Alloy Threaded Fittings: Classes 125 and 250

> Construct Rehab/Prosthetics Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

B16.18-2012.....Cast Copper Alloy Solder Joint Pressure Fittings B16.22-2013.....Wrought Copper and Copper Alloy Solder-Joint Pressure Fittings B16.24-2011.....Cast Copper Alloy Pipe Flanges and Flanged Fittings: Classes 150, 300, 600, 900, 1500, and 2500 B16.51-2013.....Copper and Copper Alloy Press-Connect Fittings ASME Boiler and Pressure Vessel Code -BPVC Section IX-2015....Welding, Brazing, and Fusing Qualifications C. American Society of Sanitary Engineers (ASSE): 1010-2004..... Performance Requirements for Water Hammer Arresters D. American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM): A47/A47M-1999 (R2014)...Standard Specification for Ferritic Malleable Iron Castings A53/A53M-2012.....Standard Specification for Pipe, Steel, Black and Hot-Dipped, Zinc-Coated, Welded and Seamless A183-2014..... Standard Specification for Carbon Steel Track Bolts and Nuts A269/A269M-2014e1.....Standard Specification for Seamless and Welded Austenitic Stainless Steel Tubing for General Service A312/A312M-2015.....Standard Specification for Seamless, Welded, and Heavily Cold Worked Austenitic Stainless Steel Pipes A403/A403M-2014.....Standard Specification for Wrought Austenitic Stainless Steel Piping Fittings A536-1984 (R2014).....Standard Specification for Ductile Iron Castings A733-2013.....Standard Specification for Welded and Seamless Carbon Steel and Austenitic Stainless Steel Pipe Nipples B32-2008 (R2014).....Standard Specification for Solder Metal

> Construct Rehab/Prosthetics Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

```
B43-2014.....Standard Specification for Seamless Red Brass
                      Pipe, Standard Sizes
B61-2008 (R2013).....Standard Specification for Steam or Valve
                      Bronze Castings
B62-2009..... Standard Specification for Composition Bronze
                      or Ounce Metal Castings
B75/B75M-2011.....Standard Specification for Seamless Copper Tube
B88-2014.....Standard Specification for Seamless Copper
                      Water Tube
B584-2014.....Standard Specification for Copper Alloy Sand
                      Castings for General Applications
B687-1999 (R2011).....Standard Specification for Brass, Copper, and
                      Chromium-Plated Pipe Nipples
C919-2012.....Standard Practice for Use of Sealants in
                      Acoustical Applications
D1785-2012.....Standard Specification for Poly (Vinyl
                      Chloride) (PVC) Plastic Pipe, Schedules 40, 80,
                      and 120
D2000-2012.....Standard Classification System for Rubber
                      Products in Automotive Applications
D2564-2012.....Standard Specification for Solvent Cements for
                      Poly (Vinyl Chloride) (PVC) Plastic Piping
                      Systems
D2657-2007.....Standard Practice for Heat Fusion Joining of
                      Polyolefin Pipe and Fittings
D2855-1996 (R2010).....Standard Practice for Making Solvent-Cemented
                      Joints with Poly (Vinyl Chloride) (PVC) Pipe
                      and Fittings
D4101-2014.....Standard Specification for Polypropylene
                      Injection and Extrusion Materials
E1120-2008.....Standard Specification for Liquid Chlorine
E1229-2008..... Standard Specification for Calcium Hypochlorite
F2389-2010.....Standard Specification for Pressure-rated
                      Polypropylene (PP) Piping Systems
```

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

F2620-2013.....Standard Practice for Heat Fusion Joining of Polyethylene Pipe and Fittings F2769-2014.....Standard Specification for Polyethylene of Raised Temperature (PE-RT) Plastic Hot and Cold-Water Tubing and Distribution Systems E. American Water Works Association (AWWA): C110-2012..... Ductile-Iron and Gray-Iron Fittings C151-2009.....Ductile Iron Pipe, Centrifugally Cast C153-2011.....Ductile-Iron Compact Fittings C203-2008.....Coal-Tar Protective Coatings and Linings for Steel Water Pipelines - Enamel and Tape - Hot Applied C213-2007.....Fusion-Bonded Epoxy Coating for the Interior and Exterior of Steel Water Pipelines C651-2014.....Disinfecting Water Mains F. American Welding Society (AWS): A5.8M/A5.8-2011-AMD1....Specification for Filler Metals for Brazing and Braze Welding G. International Code Council (ICC): IPC-2012.....International Plumbing Code H. Manufacturers Specification Society (MSS): SP-58-2009......Pipe Hangers and Supports - Materials, Design, Manufacture, Selection, Application, and Installation SP-72-2010a.....Ball Valves with Flanged or Butt-Welding Ends for General Service SP-110-2010......Ball Valves Threaded, Socket-Welding, Solder Joint, Grooved and Flared Ends I. NSF International (NSF): 14-2015..... Plastics Piping System Components and Related Materials 61-2014a.....Drinking Water System Components - Health Effects 372-2011..... Drinking Water System Components - Lead Content

> Construct Rehab/Prosthetics Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

- J. Plumbing and Drainage Institute (PDI): PDI-WH 201-2010.....Water Hammer Arrestors
- K. Department of Veterans Affairs:

H-18-8-2013.....Seismic Design Handbook

SPEC WRITER NOTE: Make material requirements agree with applicable requirements specified in the referenced Applicable Publications. Update and specify only that which applies to the project.

### 1.4 SUBMITTALS

- A. Submittals, including number of required copies, shall be submitted in accordance with Section 01 33 23, SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCT DATA, AND SAMPLES.
- B. Information and material submitted under this section shall be marked "SUBMITTED UNDER SECTION 22 11 00, FACILITY WATER DISTRIBUTIONS", with applicable paragraph identification.
- C. Manufacturer's Literature and Data including: Full item description and optional features and accessories. Include dimensions, weights, materials, applications, standard compliance, model numbers, size, and capacity.
  - 1. All items listed in Part 2 Products.
- D. Complete operating and maintenance manuals including wiring diagrams, technical data sheets and information for ordering replacement parts:
  - 1. Include complete list indicating all components of the systems.
  - Include complete diagrams of the internal wiring for each item of equipment.
  - 3. Diagrams shall have their terminals identified to facilitate installation, operation and maintenance.
- E. Completed System Readiness Checklist provided by the CxA and completed by the Contractor, signed by a qualified technician and dated on the date of completion, in accordance with the requirements of Section 22 08 00, COMMISSIONING OF PLUMBING SYSTEMS.//

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

F. Submit training plans and instructor qualifications in accordance with the requirements of Section 22 08 00, COMMISSIONING OF PLUMBING SYSTEMS.

#### 1.5 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. A certificate shall be submitted prior to welding of steel piping showing the Welder's certification. The certificate shall be current and no more than one year old. Welder's qualifications shall be in accordance with ASME BPVC Section IX.
- B. All grooved joint couplings, fittings, valves, and specialties shall be the products of a single manufacturer. Grooving tools shall be by the same manufacturer as the groove components.
- C. All pipe, couplings, fittings, and specialties shall bear the identification of the manufacturer and any markings required by the applicable referenced standards.
- D. Bio-Based Materials: For products designated by the USDA's Bio-Preferred Program, provide products that meet or exceed USDA recommendations for bio-based content, so long as products meet all performance requirements in this specifications section. For more information regarding the product categories covered by the Bio-Preferred Program, visit http://www.biopreferred.gov.

### 1.6 SPARE PARTS

A. For mechanical press-connect fittings, provide tools required for each pipe size used at the facility.

### 1.7 AS-BUILT DOCUMENTATION

- A. Submit manufacturer's literature and data updated to include submittal review comments and any equipment substitutions.
- B. Submit operation and maintenance data updated to include submittal review comments, substitutions and construction revisions shall be // in electronic version on compact disc or DVD // inserted into a three ring binder. All aspects of system operation and maintenance procedures, including piping isometrics, wiring diagrams of all circuits, a written description of system design, control logic, and sequence of operation shall be included in the operation and maintenance manual. The operations and maintenance manual shall include troubleshooting techniques and procedures for emergency situations.

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

Notes on all special systems or devices shall be included. A list of recommended spare parts (manufacturer, model number, and quantity) shall be furnished. Information explaining any special knowledge or tools the owner will be required to employ shall be inserted into the As-Built documentation.

- C. The installing contractor shall maintain as-built drawings of each completed phase for verification; and, shall provide the complete set at the time of final systems certification testing. As-built drawings are to be provided, and a copy of them in Auto-CAD version 2015 provided on compact disk or DVD. Should the installing contractor engage the testing company to provide as-built or any portion thereof, it shall not be deemed a conflict of interest or breach of the 'third party testing company' requirement.
- D. Certification documentation shall be provided to COR 10 working days prior to submitting the request for final inspection. The documentation shall include all test results, the names of individuals performing work for the testing agency on this project, detailed procedures followed for all tests, and certificate if applicable that all results of tests were within limits specified. If a certificate is not available, all documentation shall be on the Certifier's letterhead.

## PART 2 - PRODUCTS

## 2.1 MATERIALS

- A. Material or equipment containing a weighted average of greater than 0.25 percent lead are prohibited in any potable water system intended for human consumption, and shall be certified in accordance with NSF 61 or NSF 372. Endpoint devices used to dispense water for drinking shall meet the requirements of NSF 61, Section 9.
- B. Plastic pipe, fittings, and solvent cement shall meet NSF 14 and shall be NSF listed for the service intended.

#### 2.2 UNDERGROUND WATER SERVICE CONNECTIONS TO BUILDINGS

- A. From inside face of exterior wall to a distance of approximately 1500 mm (5 feet) outside of building and underground inside building, material to be the same for the size specified inside the building.
- B. 75 mm (3 inch) Diameter and Greater: Ductile iron, AWWA C151, 2413 kPa (350 psig) pressure class, exterior bituminous coating, and cement

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

lined. Bio-based materials shall be utilized when possible. Provide flanged and anchored connection to interior piping.

- C. Under 75 mm (3 inch) Diameter: Copper tubing, ASTM B88, Type K, seamless, annealed. Fittings are as specified in paragraph "Above Ground (Interior) Water Piping". Use brazing alloys, AWS A5.8M/A5.8, Classification BCuP.
- D. Flexible Expansion Joint: Ductile iron with ball joints rated for 1725 kPa (250 psig) working pressure conforming to AWWA C153, capable of deflecting a minimum of 20 degrees in each direction. Flexible expansion joint size shall match the pipe size it is connected to and shall have the expansion capability designed as an integral part of the ductile iron ball castings. Pressure containing parts shall be lined with a minimum of 15 mils of fusion bonded epoxy conforming to the applicable requirements of AWWA C213 and shall be factory tested with a 1500 volt spark test. Flexible expansion joint shall have flanged connections conforming to AWWA C110. Bolts and nuts shall be 316 stainless steel and gaskets shall be neoprene. The flexible expansion fitting shall not expand or exert an axial thrust under internal water pressure. Provide piping joint restraints at each mechanical joint end connection and piping restraints at the penetration of the building wall. The restraints shall be provided to address the developed thrust at the change of piping direction.

### 2.3 ABOVE GROUND (INTERIOR) WATER PIPING

- A. Pipe: Copper tube, ASTM B88, Type K or L, drawn. For pipe 150 mm (6 inches) and larger, stainless steel, ASTM A312, schedule 40 shall be used.
- B. Fittings for Copper Tube:
  - Wrought copper or bronze castings conforming to ASME B16.18 and B16.22. Unions shall be bronze, MSS SP-72, MSS SP-110, solder or braze joints. Use 95/5 tin and antimony for all soldered joints.
  - 2. Grooved fittings, 50 to 150 mm (2 to 6 inch) wrought copper ASTM B75/B75M C12200, 125 to 150 mm (5 to 6 inch) bronze casting ASTM B584, C84400. Mechanical grooved couplings, 2070 kpa (300 psig) minimum ductile iron, ASTM A536 Grade 448-310-12 (Grade 65-45-12),

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

or malleable iron, ASTM A47/A47M Grade 22410 (Grade 32510) housing, with EPDM gasket, steel track head bolts, ASTM A183, coated with copper colored alkyd enamel.

- 3. Mechanical press-connect fittings for copper pipe and tube shall conform to the material and sizing requirements of ASME B16.51, NSF 61 approved, 50 mm (2 inch) size and smaller mechanical pressconnect fittings, double pressed type, with EPDM (ethylene propylene diene monomer) non-toxic synthetic rubber sealing elements and unpressed fitting identification feature.
- 4. Mechanically formed tee connection: Form mechanically extracted collars in a continuous operation by drilling pilot hole and drawing out tube surface to form collar, having a height of not less than three times the thickness of tube wall. Adjustable collaring device shall ensure proper tolerance and complete uniformity of the joint. Notch and dimple joining branch tube in a single process to provide free flow where the branch tube penetrates the fitting. Braze joints.
- 5. Flanged fittings, bronze, class 150, solder-joint ends conforming to ASME B16.24.
- C. Fittings for Stainless Steel:
  - Stainless steel butt-welded fittings, Type 316, Schedule 10, conforming to ASME B16.9.
  - 2. Grooved fittings, stainless steel, Type 316, Schedule 40, conforming to ASTM A403/A403M. Segmentally fabricated fittings are not allowed. Mechanical grooved couplings, ductile iron, 4138 kPa (600 psig), ASTM A536 Grade 448-310-12 (Grade 65-45-12), or malleable iron, ASTM A47/A47M Grade 22410 (Grade 32510) housing, with EPDM gasket, steel track head bolts, ASTM A183, coated with copper colored alkyd enamel.
- D. Adapters: Provide adapters for joining pipe or tubing with dissimilar end connections.
- E. Solder: ASTM B32 alloy type Sb5, HA or HB. Provide non-corrosive flux.
- F. Brazing alloy: AWS A5.8M/A5.8, brazing filler metals shall be BCuP series for copper to copper joints and BAg series for copper to steel joints.

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

- G. Re-agent Grade Water Piping and Dialysis Water Piping:
  - Polypropylene, ASTM F2389, Schedule 80 pressure pipe without additions of modifiers, plasticizers, colorants, stabilizers or lubricants. Bio-based materials shall be utilized when possible. This virgin un-plasticized pipe and fittings shall transport 10 megohm water with no loss of purity. Provide socket or butt end fittings with ASTM D2657 heat fusion joints.
  - 2. Polyethylene, ASTM F2769, Schedule 80, food and medical grade, capable of transporting 10 megohm water with no loss of purity. Processed by continuous compression molding without the addition of fillers, polymer modifiers or processing aids. Uniform color with no cracks, flaws, blisters or other imperfections in appearance. Provide ASTM D2657 or ASTM F2620 heat fusion butt welded joints. In accordance with manufacturer's recommendations, provide continuous channel support under all horizontal piping.
  - 3. Reverse Osmosis (RO) Water Piping:
    - a. Low Pressure Feed, Reject and Recycle Piping: Less than or equal to 520 kPa (75 psig): ASTM D1785, Schedule 80 PVC, ASTM D2855 socket welded and flanged.
    - b. RO Product Tubing From Each Membrane Housing: ASTM D1785, Schedule 80 PVC, ASTM D2855 socket welded and flanged.
    - c. Low Pressure Control and Pressure Gage Tubing: Polyethylene.
    - d. High Pressure Reject and Recycle Piping: Greater than 520 kPa (75 psig): ASTM A269/A269M, Type 304 schedule 10 stainless steel with butt welded joints.
    - e. High Pressure Control and Pressure Gage Tubing: 6895 kPa (1000 psig) burst nylon.

## 2.4 EXPOSED WATER PIPING

- A. Finished Room: Use full iron pipe size chrome plated brass piping for exposed water piping connecting fixtures, casework, cabinets, equipment and reagent racks when not concealed by apron including those furnished by the Government or specified in other sections.
  - 1. Pipe: ASTM B43, standard weight.
  - 2. Fittings: ASME B16.15 cast bronze threaded fittings with chrome finish.

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

- 3. Nipples: ASTM B687, Chromium-plated.
- 4. Unions: MSS SP-72, MSS SP-110, brass or bronze with chrome finish. Unions 65 mm (2-1/2 inches) and larger shall be flange type with approved gaskets.
- B. Unfinished Rooms, Mechanical Rooms and Kitchens: Chrome-plated brass piping is not required. Paint piping systems as specified in Section 09 91 00, PAINTING.

## 2.5 ETHYLENE OXIDE (ETO) STERILIZER WATER SUPPLY PIPING

A. Stainless steel, ASTM A312, Schedule 10 with stainless steel butt welded fittings. Provide on sterilizer water supply.

### 2.6 TRAP PRIMER WATER PIPING

- A. Pipe: Copper tube, ASTM B88, type K, hard drawn.
- B. Fittings: Bronze castings conforming to ASME B16.18 Solder joints.
- C. Solder: ASTM B32 alloy type Sb5. Provide non-corrosive flux.

#### 2.7 STRAINERS

- A. Provide on high pressure side of pressure reducing valves, on suction side of pumps, on inlet side of indicating and control instruments and equipment subject to sediment damage and where shown on drawings. Strainer element shall be removable without disconnection of piping.
- B. Water: Basket or "Y" type with easily removable cover and brass strainer basket.
- C. Body: Less than 75 mm (3 inches), brass or bronze; 75 mm (3 inches) and greater, cast iron or semi-steel.

### 2.8 DIELECTRIC FITTINGS

A. Provide dielectric couplings or unions between pipe of dissimilar metals.

#### 2.9 STERILIZATION CHEMICALS

- A. Hypochlorite: ASTM E1120.
- B. Liquid Chlorine: ASTM E1229.

## 2.10 WATER HAMMER ARRESTER

A. Closed copper tube chamber with permanently sealed 413 kPa (60 psig) air charge above a Double O-ring piston. Two high heat Buna-N O-rings pressure packed and lubricated with FDA approved silicone compound. All units shall be designed in accordance with ASSE 1010. Access shall be provided where devices are concealed within partitions or above

> Construct Rehab/Prosthetics Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

ceilings. Size and install in accordance with PDI-WH 201 requirements. Provide water hammer arrestors at:

- 1. All solenoid valves.
- 2. All groups of two or more flush valves.
- 3. All quick opening or closing valves.
- 4. All medical washing equipment.

## PART 3 - EXECUTION

### 3.1 INSTALLATION

- A. General: Comply with the International Plumbing Code and the following:
  - Install branch piping for water from the piping system and connect to all fixtures, valves, cocks, outlets, casework, cabinets and equipment, including those furnished by the Government or specified in other sections.
  - Pipe shall be round and straight. Cutting shall be done with proper tools. Pipe, except for plastic and glass, shall be reamed to remove burrs and a clean smooth finish restored to full pipe inside diameter.
  - All pipe runs shall be laid out to avoid interference with other work/trades.
  - Install union and shut-off valve on pressure piping at connections to equipment.
  - 5. Pipe Hangers, Supports and Accessories:
    - a. All piping shall be supported per the IPC, H-18-8 Seismic Design Handbook, MSS SP-58, and SMACNA as required.
    - b. Shop Painting and Plating: Hangers, supports, rods, inserts and accessories used for pipe supports shall be shop coated with zinc chromate primer paint. Electroplated copper hanger rods, hangers and accessories may be used with copper tubing.
    - c. Floor, Wall and Ceiling Plates, Supports, Hangers:
      - 1) Solid or split un-plated cast iron.
      - 2) All plates shall be provided with set screws.
      - 3) Pipe Hangers: Height adjustable clevis type.
      - 4) Adjustable Floor Rests and Base Flanges: Steel.
      - 5) Concrete Inserts: "Universal" or continuous slotted type.

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

- 6) Hanger Rods: Mild, low carbon steel, fully threaded or Threaded at each end with two removable nuts at each end for positioning rod and hanger and locking each in place.
- 7) Pipe Hangers and Riser Clamps: Malleable iron or carbon steel. Pipe Hangers and riser clamps shall have a copper finish when supporting bare copper pipe or tubing.
- 8) Rollers: Cast iron.
- Self-drilling type expansion shields shall be "Phillips" type, with case hardened steel expander plugs.
- 10) Hangers and supports utilized with insulated pipe and tubing shall have 180 degree (minimum) metal protection shield centered on and welded to the hanger and support. The shield thickness and length shall be engineered and sized for distribution of loads to preclude crushing of insulation without breaking the vapor barrier. The shield shall be sized for the insulation and have flared edges to protect vapor-retardant jacket facing. To prevent the shield from sliding out of the clevis hanger during pipe movement, centerribbed shields shall be used.
- 11) Miscellaneous Materials: As specified, required, directed or as noted on the drawings for proper installation of hangers, supports and accessories. If the vertical distance exceeds 6.1 m (20 feet) for cast iron pipe additional support shall be provided in the center of that span. Provide all necessary auxiliary steel to provide that support.
- 12) With the installation of each flexible expansion joint, provide piping restraints for the upstream and downstream section of the piping at the flexible expansion joint. Provide calculations supporting the restraint length design and type of selected restraints. Restraint calculations shall be based on the criteria from the manufacturer regarding their restraint design.
- 6. Install chrome plated cast brass escutcheon with set screw at each wall, floor and ceiling penetration in exposed finished locations and within cabinets and millwork.

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

- 7. Penetrations:
  - a. Firestopping: Where pipes pass through fire partitions, fire walls, smoke partitions, or floors, install a fire stop that provides an effective barrier against the spread of fire, smoke, and gases as specified in Section 07 84 00, FIRESTOPPING. Completely fill and seal clearances between raceways and openings with the firestopping materials.
  - b. Waterproofing: At floor penetrations, completely seal clearances around the pipe and make watertight with sealant as specified in Section 07 92 00, JOINT SEALANTS. Bio-based materials shall be utilized when possible.
  - c. Acoustical sealant: Where pipes pass through sound rated walls, seal around the pipe penetration with an acoustical sealant that is compliant with ASTM C919.
- 8. Mechanical press-connect fitting connections shall be made in accordance with the manufacturer's installation instructions. The tubing shall be fully inserted into the fitting and the tubing marked at the shoulder of the fitting. The fitting alignment shall be checked against the mark on the tubing to assure the tubing is fully engaged (inserted) in the fitting. Ensure the tube is completely inserted to the fitting stop (appropriate depth) and squared with the fitting prior to applying the pressing jaws onto the fitting. The joints shall be pressed using the tool(s) approved by the manufacturer. Minimum distance between fittings shall be in accordance with the manufacturer's requirements. When the pressing cycle is complete, visually inspect the joint to ensure the tube has remained fully inserted, as evidenced by the visible insertion mark.
- B. Domestic Water piping shall conform to the following:
  - Grade all lines to facilitate drainage. Provide drain values at bottom of risers and all low points in system. Design domestic hot water circulating lines with no traps.
  - Connect branch lines at bottom of main serving fixtures below and pitch down so that main may be drained through fixture. Connect branch lines to top of main serving only fixtures located on floor above.

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302

 $22 \ 11 \ 00 \ - \ 14$ 

09-01-15

## 3.2 TESTS

- A. General: Test system either in its entirety or in sections. Submit testing plan to COR 10 working days prior to test date.
- B. Potable Water System: Test after installation of piping and domestic water heaters, but before piping is concealed, before covering is applied, and before plumbing fixtures are connected. Fill systems with water and maintain hydrostatic pressure of 1035 kPa (150 psig) gage for two hours. No decrease in pressure is allowed. Provide a pressure gage with a shutoff and bleeder valve at the highest point of the piping being tested. Pressure gauge shall have 1 psig increments.
- C. Re-agent Grade Water Systems: Fill system with water and maintain hydrostatic pressure of 1380 kPa (200 psig) gage during inspection and prove tight.
- D. All Other Piping Tests: Test new installed piping under 1-1/2 times actual operating conditions and prove tight.
- E. The test pressure shall hold for the minimum time duration required by the applicable plumbing code or authority having jurisdiction.

#### 3.3 STERILIZATION

- A. After tests have been successfully completed, thoroughly flush and sterilize the interior domestic water distribution system in accordance with AWWA C651.
- B. Use liquid chlorine or hypochlorite for sterilization.

## 3.4 COMMISSIONING

- A. Provide commissioning documentation in accordance with the requirements of Section 22 08 00, COMMISSIONING OF PLUMBING SYSTEMS.
- B. Components provided under this section of the specification will be tested as part of a larger system.//

#### 3.5 DEMONSTRATION AND TRAINING

- A. Provide services of manufacturer's technical representative for four hours to instruct VA Personnel in operation and maintenance of the system.
- B. Submit training plans and instructor qualifications in accordance with the requirements of Section 22 08 00, COMMISSIONING OF PLUMBING SYSTEMS.

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302 - - - E N D - - -

Construct Rehab/Prosthetics Ortho/Neuro/Holistic Medicine Addition (B.01) VA Project 660-302